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Financial Highlights B #Z

Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2022 BZE=F=--FZAZ+-ALFEZ2FEE
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¢ Revenue

¢ Profit before income tax

e Shareholders’ fund as at 31 March 2022
* Basic earnings per share

Revenue (HK$'000)
Operating profit (HK$'000)
Profit before income tax (HK$’000)

Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$’000)

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)
Interim dividend per share declared and paid (HK cents) B &k & {458 1 EA IR 2 (B4L)

Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents)

Net asset value (HK$'000)
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HK$15.6 million
HK$470.5 million
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Net asset value (HK$’M)
EERE (EEBT)
HK$494.6 million 41946 BEBETT

156 BEBT
4705 BEBTT

HK1.98 cents 1.98 7Bl
2022 2021
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494,592 422,454
19,158 16,741
15,582 12,595
11,894 10,769
1.98 1.79
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Corporate Information 2 RE&EH
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE
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Chairman’s Statement FEHR&EE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report for the year ended 31
March 2022.

The 2021/2022 financial year was full of complications and
challenges. The coronavirus disease 2019 (the “COVID-19")
pandemic has shaped many aspects of our lives this past year and
disrupted our usual way of life and the way we did business. With
the fifth wave of the pandemic under control in the first quarter of
2022, the market sentiment has shown gradual but slow
improvement since then.

Nevertheless, any recovery from the virus-hit market would likely
be slow due to the uncertainty of any future further outbreak of
new strains of BA.4 and BA.5 Omicron and the return of strict
preventive measures such as social distancing, lockdown of
affected areas, closing off specific public venues, mandatory
hospital quarantine and other travel restriction etc. In addition,
global uncertainty resulting from geopolitical and military conflicts
and trade and economic sanctions leads to rising commodities, oil,
and gas prices, causing worldwide inflation and rising interest
rates. It threatens to dampen consumer confidence and market
sentiment worldwide. In the People’s Republic of China, strict
Omicron closed-off management in major cities disrupted the
logistic chains, causing the fall of gross domestic product (“GDP”)
in the second quarter of 2022, hampering the GDP growth in
2022. In Hong Kong, the actual GDP growth forecast for 2022 was
revised down to 1%-2% following the outbreak of the fifth wave of
COVID-19 in May 2022.

The government’s new round of the Consumption Voucher Scheme
2022, together with the 2022 Employment Support Scheme and
Temporary Unemployment Relief Scheme, would generate more
customer demand in Hong Kong retail, catering and food and
beverage markets, facilitating the recovery of Hong Kong economy
later in 2022.

The residential market declined in the first quarter of 2022
compared to the previous quarter as potential buyers stayed away
from the residential property market due to social distance
restrictions during Hong Kong’s worst fifth wave of the Omicron
outbreak. The outbreak was under control in early April and
levelled off since then. The transactions volume bounced back in
May 2022.
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Chairman’s Statement FEHR&EE

Following the improved the Omicron epidemic in Hong Kong and
after the government relaxed the social-distancing measures on 21
April 2022, the unexpected, relatively increase in transactions in
the primary market in May 2022 indicates that demand for housing
in Hong Kong will always be strong. We are cautiously optimistic
that the volume of transactions in both the primary and secondary
real estate markets will be picked up steadily throughout in 2022.
Nevertheless, as always, geopolitical tensions, rising commodity
prices, inflation, and interest rate hikes may undermine the
effectiveness of any new measures and policy changes that aim to
revitalise the economic growth of Hong Kong, dampening market
sentiment in the property market.

Our prudent business strategies and our ability to adapt, respond to
and recover from the ever-changing disrupting external
environment ensure operation resilience during this challenging
time. We have managed to maintain growth in revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2022. Therefore, we will propose at the
forthcoming annual general meeting seeking shareholders’
approval for, among other things, the payment of a final dividend
of HKT1 cent per share. The current and quick ratios are 2.0 (2021:
2.0) and 1.4 (2021: 1.2), respectively.

We cautiously explore new business opportunities by capitalising
on our experience and collaborative relationship with reputable
property developers. We will continue to execute current strategies
to optimise the structure, alongside a disciplined approach to
mitigate the negative impact of the upcoming year’s highly
uncertain and unprecedented ever-changing adverse business
environment that cannot be foreseen or measured.

The management would like to thank you for your support and
trust and also express our appreciation for the loyalty and efforts of
our dedicated staff. Their support and contributions have been
indispensable for the Group’s past development; and its prosperity
for years to come.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

14 July 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 B &0 #

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing, wholesale,
retail and installation of architectural builders’ hardware,
bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture and provision of
interior design services, project and contract management in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

A business review of the Group and an analysis of the Group's
performance using financial key performance indicators during the
year are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis. In
addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance and an account of the Group’s key relationships with
its employees, customers, suppliers and others that have a
significant impact on the Group and on which the Group’s success
depends are provided in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Annual Report 2022.

Details of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set
out in the Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) are provided in the Corporate Governance Report
of the Annual Report 2022. Save as disclosed herein, during the
year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has complied with the
requirements under the Listing Rules, the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Cayman Islands Companies Act.

During the year, pandemic control measures were gradually lifted
in certain economies as the coronavirus disease (COVID-19) had
slowly brought under control following mass vaccination
worldwide. In Hong Kong, business and local consumption
sentiment improved and the housing market remained stable.
Supply chain and transportation disruptions caused an upsurge in
raw materials and freight costs. The liquidity issue of real estate
developers of the PRC has affected the capital market.

Hong Kong experienced an unexpected marked downturn in the
economy in the first quarter of 2022, with gross domestic product
(“GDP”) contracting by 4.0% in real terms after an increase of
4.7% in the fourth quarter of 2021. It was mainly due to the fifth
wave of the COVID-19 epidemic undergoing drastic changes in
January 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

BUSINESS REVIEW (coNT'D)

The government imposed anti-epidemic measures of inbound
control by banning incoming flights from Australia, Canada,
France, India, Pakistan, the Philippines, the United Kingdom and
the United States (the US) and controlling the spread of highly
infectious Omicron outbreak by strict social distancing policy and
shutting down business such as beauty parlours, barber shops, the
restaurant closed at dinner time 6 pm, bars and pubs to sports
premises and karaoke establishments. Hong Kong banned most
public activities on 7 January 2022. The fifth wave peaked in late
March/early April 2022 and eased down in mid-April 2022. All
these restrictive measures have dampened consumer confidence
and sentiments.

On 21 April 2022, the government began to adjust the social
distancing measures by reopening cosmetic beauty services and
allowing the resumption of dinnertime dine-in services in response
to the longing of Hong Kong citizens and the business sectors to
resume business back to normal as soon as practicable. Since 19
May 2022, catering businesses are allowed to extend dinner
services until midnight with a maximum of eight people per table.
The government also introduced the COVID-19 vaccine pass as a
condition of relaxing measures for people to access public
activities.

In addition, the high geopolitical tensions have put the global
economy at risk starting from the first quarter of 2022. This is due
to the confluence of factors that includes military conflict in
Ukraine; international sanctions such as by the US and Europe
against Russia, coupled with geopolitical tensions between the
PRC and the US, have adversely affected global trade, elevating
prices for commodity food and oil, disrupting the supply chain and
logistics. All these factors lead to unexpectedly high inflationary
pressures at a worldwide level. The potential US interest rate hike
further restrains the recovery of the global economy from the
COVID-19 pandemic. These factors are yet to reflect in this
reporting period.

The demand for residential property remained weak in the first
quarter of 2022. Market sentiment was dampened by the
uncertainties of current political situations in Europe, the US-China
tensions, the rise in the prices of commodities and oil, and the
local COVID-19 epidemic situation, with the latter also disrupting
business and trading activities. The number of residential property
transactions, in terms of the total number of sale and purchase
agreements for residential property received by the Land Registry
from January to March 2022 plunged by over 30% compared to
the same period last year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONT'D)

We have managed to achieve a growth in our revenue for the
financial year ended on 31 March 2022. The above factors only
affected the last quarter of our sales. The impact of the
uncertainties above might have weakened our performance in the
coming year. We would, as always, work hard to maintain and
strengthen our working relationship and co-operation with
reputable property developers.

REVENUE REVIEW

Revenue by business segment

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group's total turnover was
HK$494.6 million, representing an increase of 17.1% as compared
with the previous year.

Revenue from external customers

¥ 75O E)

BE_R-__S-A=+-HLEUBFE  RMAXK
WERREER LR ZEFERMARER -—FE
MEE - DT AREENZENSEIBRFRF
MIRIR o WG —MERIE - B HERFRNBEFER
X BHREBNIEERREE -

Wy 255 00 B
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BE-Z-__F=-A=+—HLEE KEELE
A4 EEEBTL BREFEMNI17.1%

As a percentage of sales

HINE P a HEHEERADL
31 March 31 March
ZA=+-H ZA=+-8
2022 2021 Change 2022 2021
—B--f ZE--F 2y —FT--F C—ZT--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 (%) (%) (%)
TER TERT
Architectural builders’ BERE  FHARE
hardware, bathroom REAM
collections and others 362,269 322,280 12.4 73.2 76.3
Kitchen collection and furniture EER& R HH 132,323 100,174 32.1 26.8 23.7
494,592 422,454 17.1 100.0 100.0

Profitability by business segment

Reportable segment gross profit

BRERIBE D 2 BFIRE

Gross profit margin

AEHz?HER EFIZE (%)
2022 2021 Change 2022 2021
—E--F —E]--F gy —ZI-——f —T--F
HK$'000 HK$’000 (%) (%) (%)
TERT TERT
Architectural builders’ BERE  FARE
hardware, bathroom RHAM

collections and others 118,178 115,154 2.6 32.6 35.7
Kitchen collection and furniture BE R ERERR 65,318 43,431 50.4 49.4 43.4
183,496 158,585 15.7 37.1 37.5

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 &5 #2704

REVENUE REVIEW (CONT'D)

Revenue from the architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom
collections and others segment increased by 12.4% to HK$362.3
million (2021: HK$322.3 million) as compared to the previous
year. During the year, we supplied for projects such as Baker Circle
Dover, Grand Victoria, Sheraton Hong Kong Hotel and The
Aperture.

Revenue from the kitchen collection and furniture segment
increased by 32.1% to HK$132.3 million (2021: HK$100.2
million) as compared to the previous year. During the year, we
supplied for projects such as La Marina.

The overall gross profit of the Group amounted to HK$183.5
million (2021: HK$158.6 million), representing an increase of
15.7% from the previous year due to a general improvement in site
progress leading to increased project deliveries. The overall gross
profit margin slightly decreased to 37.1% from 37.5%.

The Group'’s operating profit was HK$19.2 million (2021: HK$16.7
million), representing an increase of 14.4% from the prior year.
The amount of administrative expenses and distribution costs
increased by 10.7% to HK$164.9 million (2021: HK$149.0
million) which reflected our efforts in controlling selling expenses
despite resumption in selling activities. During the year, the Group
did not receive any government subsidies (2021: received HK$8.0
million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continues to expand its business in Hong Kong and the
PRC while adopting a prudent financial management policy. The
current ratio and quick ratio are 2.0 (2021: 2.0) and 1.4 (2021: 1.2),
respectively. Cash and cash equivalents approximated HK$104.2
million as at 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$103.0 million).

Inventories decreased to HK$115.4 million (2021: HK$142.5
million). The trade, retention and other receivables increased to
HK$154.7 million (2021: HK$99.0 million), while the trade and
other payables reduced to HK$34.4 million (2021: HK$36.0
million).

As at 31 March 2022, the gearing ratio (net debt divided by total
equity) of the Group is not applicable, the Group has a net cash
position (2021: 7.4%). The interest-bearing borrowings of the
Group reduced to HK$42.1 million (2021: HK$66.6 million) as at
31 March 2022.

Treasury Policy

Borrowings, cash and cash equivalents are primarily denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and Euro (“Euro”). During the year,
the Group entered into certain forward contracts to buy Euro for
settlement of purchases. The management will continue to monitor
the foreign exchange risk exposure of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

We seek to manage our cash flow and capital commitments
effectively to ensure that we have sufficient funds to meet our
existing and future cash requirements. We have not experienced
any difficulties in meeting our obligations as they become due.
Assets under charge include mortgaged property acquired. As at 31
March 2022, performance bonds of approximately HK$32.5
million (2021: HK$37.6 million) have been issued by the Group to
customers as security of contracts. Save for the performance bonds
for projects, the Group has no other material financial
commitments and contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2022.

5t % 51 8
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the international political conflicts, military
conflict in Europe and the COVID-19 Omicron pandemic will
continue to transform the global supply chain landscape, price
hikes in commodities and oil supply. International sanctions
against Russia, interest hikes in central banks, and inflationary
pressures on the worldwide economy threaten the financial and
operational stability of business and traders around the world than
they have ever seen for many years.

Given the world’s geopolitical environment is never stable, the
current uncertainties are unprecedented, mainly as geopolitics
affect policies on the supply chain, tourism, logistics and trade, the
downside risks in the global economy remain significant. In
addition, the world economy will struggle to recover from
COVID-19 pandemic outbreaks in 2022.

In the PRC, strict Omicron prevention and control measures in
major cities led to a GDP fall in the second quarter of 2022; it
might dampen GDP growth this year. In Hong Kong, anti-Omicron
restrictive measures led to a GDP fall in the first quarter of 2022.
The government data reveals that the private consumption
expenditure decreased 5.5% in real terms from a year earlier,
dampening consumer confidence and sentiments. Overall
investment expenditure declined by 8.4% in real terms as business
sentiment worsened. The uncertainties of a new wave of Omicron
epidemic and the world’s geopolitical environment remain a
challenge to Hong Kong’s economy. However, the Hong Kong
government indicated that inflation would be 2% this year. With
deteriorating export performance and dampened consumer
confidence in the first half-year of 2022, Hong Kong’s economic
recovery is cautiously optimistic and mild.

Given the current trends in the number of residential units sold for
the first quarter of 2022, we will keep a close eye on the residential
property market. The uncertainties as suggested above remain
challenging to our business as they are beyond our control.

In the near term, according to Rating and Valuation Department,
the forecast for housing completions in 2022 and 2023 are 22,850
and 21,850 units, respectively. Nevertheless, the Hong Kong
government’s direction in increasing housing supply is expected to
continue regardless of the change in administration in July 2022.
The making of the Northern Metropolis will provide
accommodation capacity in the long term.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

The government’s new round of the Consumption Voucher Scheme
2022, with a total value of $10,000 or $5,000 by instalments for
each eligible participant, along with the 2022 Employment Support
Scheme and Temporary Unemployment Relief Scheme, would
create customer demand in Hong Kong retail, catering and food
and beverage markets, that in turn, facilitate the recovery of Hong
Kong economy in the later of 2022.

Hong Kong reduced its economic growth forecast down to 1%—-2%
for the year from an earlier forecast of 2%-3.5% because of the
COVID-19 outbreak earlier this year, the potential COVID-19’s
sixth or seventh waves, the ever-changing international geopolitical
circumstances have caused price hikes in food, commodities and
oil, disruption of supply chain and logistics, the subsequent
inflationary pressures lead to higher interest rates, all these would
have a more significant impact and disruption on business and
trade than they have ever seen for many years.

The Group has evolved to sustain growth amid challenges brought
by the pandemic, and will continue to optimise structure to stay
robust and flexible in the market. We will cautiously explore new
growth opportunities in relevant business field, identify and acquire
suitable premises for self-use. We will continue to closely monitor
external factors such as geopolitical tensions, supply chain
disruptions and currency rates and adjust our strategies
accordingly.
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The Board of Directors is pleased to submit their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 171 to 172.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS, APPROPRIATIONS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 107 to 108.

Appropriations of profits and movements in the reserves of the
Group and of the Company during the year are set out in notes 28
and 33(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board declared and paid an interim dividend of HK0.5 cent
per share for the six months ended 30 September 2021 (six months
ended 30 September 2020: HKO0.5 cent per share) totalling
HK$3,003,000 (six months ended 30 September 2020:
HK$3,003,000).

The Board has resolved to recommend, at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 7 September 2022, a
final dividend of HK1 cent per share for the year ended 31 March
2022 (year ended 31 March 2021: HKO.5 cent per share) (the
“Final Dividend”), totalling HK$6,006,000 (year ended 31 March
2021: HK$3,003,000).

If it is duly approved by the members at the AGM, the Final
Dividend will be distributed to members, whose names appear on
the principal or branch register of members of the Company in the
Cayman Islands or Hong Kong respectively (collectively the
“Register of Members”) as at the close of business on 15 September
2022. The payment will be made on 12 October 2022.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
The register of members of the Company will be closed as follows:

(@) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 2 September 2022 to 7
September 2022, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
right to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (address will be changed
to 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong with effect from 15 August 2022) no later than 4:30 p.m.
on 1 September 2022.

(b)  For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for
the Final Dividend, the register of members of the Company
will be closed on 15 September 2022, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
the Final Dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with Tricor Abacus
Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong (address will be changed to 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong with effect
from 15 August 2022) no later than 4:30 p.m. on 14
September 2022.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2022,
calculated under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to HK$58,840,000 (2021: HK$64,101,000). Under
Section 34 of the Companies Act (2022 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium is available for distribution to
shareholders, provided that no distribution or dividend shall be
paid to shareholders out of the Company’s share premium unless
the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”) and
there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES

At the beginning of the year, the Company indirectly held full
interest in an office property for investment purpose. The property
is located at 19/F, First Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The property is held on long lease.
During the year, the use of property was changed to self-
occupancy. Further details of the properties held for investment
purposes are set out in the note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

The details of bank loans and borrowings as at 31 March 2022 are
set out in the note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations for charitable or other purposes made by the Group
during the year amounted to HK$56,000 (2021: HK$30,130).
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year and/or
during the period from the end of the financial year to the date of
this report are kept at the Head Office in Hong Kong and available
for inspection during business hours.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, aged 65, is the Chairman of the Board. He
is a director of seven subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE
possesses over 30 years of experience in trading of building
materials. He is responsible for the planning of the Group’s overall
strategies and the overall management of the Group. Mr. TSE is a
brother of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the
Company; a cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman
of the Company; and an uncle of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, the
Deputy Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, aged 71, a founding member of the
Group, was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice Chairman
of the Company on 21 June 2012. He established his reputation in
the industry and has a wealth of experience in brand building, new
product development and structuring the management of the
Group. Mr. TSE is a cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the
Chairman of the Board and Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing
Director of the Company; and the father of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin,
the Deputy Managing Director of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cONT'D)

Executive Directors (cont’d)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, aged 63, is the Managing Director of the
Company and joined the Group in 1979. He is a director of
twenty-seven subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE possesses over
30 years of experience in trading of building materials and is
responsible for the retail business of the Group. Mr. TSE also assists
in the strategic planning and management of the Group. Mr. TSE is
a brother of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Board; a
cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman of the
Company; and an uncle of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, the Deputy
Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun, aged 54, joined the Group in 1994. Mr. LAU
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 10
December 2001. He is responsible for project sales. Mr. LAU
graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly Baptist
College) in 1992 with a Bachelor’s Degree of Science.

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, aged 42, is the Deputy Managing Director
of the Company and joined the Group in 2004. He was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 8 September 2008
and is a director of twenty subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE
graduated from University of Toronto with a Bachelor’s Degree of
Commerce. He is responsible for internal information technology
development, the launching of the furniture business and the
marketing of products distributed by the Group. Mr. TSE is a
nephew of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Board and
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the Company; and
a son of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman of the
Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, aged 73, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 19 June 2001. He
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1972 with
Honours Bachelor’s Degree of Social Science in Economics. He
was appointed as a Director and general manager of Hongkong
Ferry (Holdings) Ltd., formerly The Hongkong & Yaumatei Ferry
Co., Ltd. until late 1989. He has been actively involved in garment
industry and IT business for the last few years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cONT'D)

Independent Non-executive Directors (cont'd)

Mr. WAN Sze Chung, aged 47, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 27 September 2004. He obtained a
Master Degree in Business Administration with the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a Master of Education (Counselling &
Guidance) with University of Newcastle upon Tyne, a Second
Bachelor’s Degree of Law with Tsinghua University and a Bachelor
Degree in Accountancy with the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. WAN is an independent non-
executive director of Plover Bay Technologies Limited, a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a
director of Jacob Walery Limited specialising in corporate
consultancy and training since 1 March 2007 while he is also
teaching with various universities and professional institutes.

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong, aged 77, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 29 November 2019. He is a Chartered
engineer, Chartered arbitrator, and a Barrister-at-Law in Hong Kong
and in England and Wales. He received his Bachelor of Science in
Engineering, Master of Science in Engineering, and Doctor of
Philosophy degrees from the University of Hong Kong in 1966,
1968 and 1982 respectively; a Professional Engineer degree from
the Columbia University in the City of New York in 1976; a Master
of Business Administration degree from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1980; a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University
of London in 1987; and a Master of Laws in Arbitration and
Dispute Resolution degree from the City University of Hong Kong
in 1994. Dr. LUK was a past President of the Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers (2000-2001) and a member of the Building Ordinance
Appeal Tribunal in Hong Kong (1995-2010). Dr. Luk is a fellow of
the Institution of Structural Engineers, the Institution of Civil
Engineers, the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, the Chartered
Institution of Arbitrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators.
Currently, he is an adjunct professor of the Technological and
Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong, and Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics in the People’s Republic of China, an
Honorary Fellow of HKU School of Professional and Continuing
Education and the chairman of Asian Construction Management
Association.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cONT'D)

Senior management

Mr. AU Lai Chuen, Hercules, aged 65, joined the Group in 1982.
Mr. AU is a sales director of project sales division. He possesses
over 30 years of experience in the building materials industry and
is responsible for project related sales and marketing activities.

Mr. LEE Ka Ming, Clement, aged 47, joined the Group in 1994. Mr.
LEE is a deputy general manager of project sales division. He
possesses over 20 years of experience in building materials industry
and is responsible for project sales.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the service contracts with Directors as disclosed herein,
no contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors, including Independent Non-executive
Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment, which
constitutes a service contract, with the Company for a term of 12
months. They are subject to re-election by shareholders at annual
general meetings and at least once every three years on a rotation
basis in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. No Director has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and
Mr. WAN Sze Chung will retire at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. WONG Wah,
Dominic, Mr. WAN Sze Chung and Dr. LUK Wang Kwong are
Independent Non-executive Directors and were appointed for a
fixed term of one year.

DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors’ emoluments, on a named basis, during the
year are set out in note 12(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of their independence pursuant
to the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all of
its Independent Non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, no Director was interested in any business apart
from the Company’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them, their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators, shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices or trusts. An insurance cover is in
place to protect Directors against potential costs and liabilities
arising from claims brought against the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Scheme

The Company has not operated any share option schemes during
the year ended 31 March 2022. As at 31 March 2021 and 31
March 2022, there was no outstanding share option of the
Company.

In addition, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during or subsisted at the
end of the year.
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DIRECTORS” MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, no other transaction, arrangement or contract that is
significant in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company’s subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in
which a Director of the Company and the Director’s connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year and at the end of the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its other associated corporations a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors and chief
executives of the company (including their spouses and children
under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporations.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which have been notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Directors’ interests

EERESTRAERE QRS E[E
BEEcRORMEBRO R ES 2ES
R/ KR

RZEZZF=F=+—H > SEEREAQAES
THAESHEZHEALTRALIRELBEEE
(EERBHZRBERFIEXVER) 2B M5 - HERS
RESHD BERBEZSFRBEGASEXVEE7 RS
PHEHERATREBHER S FIERA T ([E
R 2R RER » RIREE F R EEHGI5E 352
BREFBZECMAITHEZ2EZRAR KRB L
TRAMET B LTRTAESETESRIGZ
EESA(ZESA ) BTANERATARBERMZ
EERABRNT :

B

Number of ordinary
shares interested

FEEENZEREA
Equity Percentage
Personal Corporate derivatives of share
Director 5 interests interests (share options) Total  capital issued
EHETETR HEBITRA
B AR NEER (B oy ZHEAHL
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 1) AEELE (1) - 37,197,294 - 37,197,294 6.19%
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Note 2) TR LA (BEE2) - 108,302,488 - 108,302,488 18.03%
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 3) HENE STk (R 3) - 43,659,542 - 43,659,542 7.27%
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 2) HHEA L (FRE2) — 108,302,488 — 108,302,488 18.03%
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun BB R - - - - -
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic EHELLE - - - - -
Mr. WAN Sze Chung BEHELE - - - - -
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong EREELT - - - - -

Note 1: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Fast Way
Management Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse are the
beneficiaries.

Note 2: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Universal Star Group
Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and their family
are the beneficiaries.

Note 3: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by New Happy Times
Limited. The spouse of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and his family are the
beneficiaries. He is deemed to have beneficial interest in the Company.

MiEE1 : %A DB R DR M Fast Way Management Limited

A - AR EREBEBAZEA ©

MizE2 @ ZEARDE IR B Universal Star Group Limited
BoHHEEE  HEREERRECRKERERS
A °

MizE3 : ZE A1 R R4 % B New Happy Times Limited
B -WHBLALEZEBRERGRERZHA » K
BAREAREEESER -
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(CONT'D)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives
or their associates had, as at 31 March 2022, any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

At no time during the year, the Directors and chief executives
(including their spouses and children under 18 years of age) had
any interests in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, its specified undertakings or its other associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the “Companies
Ordinance”).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2022, the following persons (not being Directors or
chief executives of the Company) had the following interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Personal
Name of shareholder BREEE HH interest
AR
Happy Voice Limited Happy Voice Limited -
Ms. LIM Mee Hwa (Note) LIM Mee Hwa Zz % (Fff &) 4,501,650
Mr. YEO Seng Chong (Note)  YEO Seng Chong 5£4 (K &E) 500,000

Note: Ms. Lim owns 4,501,650 Shares directly in her own name and her husband
Mr. Yeo owns 500,000 Shares in his own name. Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo, in
aggregate, own the entire shareholding in Yeoman Capital Management Pte
Ltd (“YCMPL") and therefore control YCMPL. The total shareholding in the
Company held by each of Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo, comprised of direct
shareholding, deemed shareholding through spouse and fully-controlled
corporation, is 30,455,550. Each of Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo is deemed under
the SFO to be interested in all the Shares held beneficially and deemed to be
beneficially held.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of
any substantial shareholder (other than Directors of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that were recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2022.

FERR

RZBEZZF=A=+—8 UTAL(AEFESH
AATRBTHAE)RADTRMD RAABERD T %
BUTRIBEESFRBEKRGIZE60IKAFEZR M
Frttgz EESAA

RAEDFARGRABRG 2FRE
Percentage
Family Corporate of share
interest interest Total capital issued
EEBITRA
ENY S NE)ED Bt ZEDH
- 73,581,206 73,581,206 12.25%
500,000 25,453,900 30,455,550 5.07%
4,501,650 25,453,900 30,455,550 5.07%

Mz : LmZTUHEB S EREEREEG 4,501,650 RRH > RE
YK Yeo R ELUE B & B FH B 500,000 BRIR1D © Lim &2
+ & Yeo 54 & £ A Yeoman Capital Management Pte
Ltd ((YCMPLJ) #9 2 SRR #E - [ Lt ¥ YCMPL B 42 Il 7 o
HALmZERYeo REEBIEFENAARRELE(HE
EER BARBRAESRETZ2E6NARAMK) A
30,455,550 1% ° RIBEFFRBEHG  LimZ LR Yeo sk
EEBEBEREREERREERBFENMERNM P
mERER ©

MREXFIIFEN RZTE__F=A=+—8 F&2Q
AU THMBEEMEERR (KATEERI) RE
AARDBEERD T EERIEF S RPERGIE
336 RBEBFBZECMATCEZEERALR
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Negotiator Consultants Limited

The related party transaction as disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022 in respect of the lease payment for warehouse rental of
approximately HK$2,774,000 paid to Negotiator Consultants
Limited (“NCL”) constitutes a continuing connected party
transaction. The transaction was entered into between NCL and E.
Bon Building Materials Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, for a term of one year commencing
from 1 April 2021 and expiring on 31 March 2022 (both days
inclusive) on 31 March 2021. NCL is a subsidiary of a company in
which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE
Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin have beneficial interests.
The determination of the lease payments followed the pricing
policies and guidelines set out in the continuing connected
transaction announcement dated 31 March 2021. On 29 October
2021, the connected relationship under this leasing transaction had
ceased. Full details of which are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 October 2021.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and have confirmed that
these continuing connected transactions were entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) either on
normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter to the Board containing findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group as
above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Negotiator Consultants Limited
BRAEMBHRERMENRAEBERE-_S-__F=A1
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group recognises that external events may affect the
environment in which the Group operates. The Group’s business is
managed by an experienced management team who have a close
involvement in the day-to-day running of the business, which
ensures that the Group is prepared for, and can react quickly by
adapting its business to, changes in the operating environment.
Further discussions on the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties
are provided throughout this annual report, particularly in
“Chairman’s Statement” (pages 7 to 8), “Management Discussion
and Analysis” (pages 9 to 15), “Risk Management and Internal
Control” (pages 52 to 57), “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” (pages 64 to 96) and “Financial Risk Management” (pages
138 to 145). The above discussions form part of this Directors’
Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, save as disclosed on page 33 in Corporate
Governance Report, as far as the Board and management are
aware, the Group has complied with the requirements under the
Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance, the SFO and the Cayman
Islands Companies Act.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to maintaining a collaborative relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers. Details of which are
set out on pages 79 to 87 and form part of this Directors’ Report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2022, our workforce was recorded at 147
employees (2021: 149). Total staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$72,100,000 (2021:
HK$57,330,000). Competitive packages are offered to attract,
retain and motivate competent individuals.

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to legal framework, market conditions and both the
Group’s and individual performances. The remuneration policy
and remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and
members of the senior management of the Group are considered
by the Remuneration Committee in accordance with its Terms of
Reference. Details of Directors’” emoluments during the year are set
out on page 157. The Group does not have any share option
scheme for employees.
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REMUNERATION POLICY (coNT'D)

Senior management remuneration
For the year ended 31 March 2022, remuneration paid to members
of the senior management is as follows:

Fr BUR ()

BREBASHTH
BE-T--F=A=+t-RHLEE XNTFER
EEABZHMMT :

Number of

Remuneration bands P FE R individuals
AE

HK$0-HK$ 1,000,000 07 7T E 1,000,000 % 7T 1
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 3 7T = 1,500,000 & 7T 1

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases RIBE

The largest supplier RAHRER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate BRHEFA
Revenue HEH

The largest customer BRAEF

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFFEE

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers disclosed above.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group endeavours to minimising pollution and protecting the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of
energy and waste. Details of which are set out on pages 73 to 79.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 190.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at
the date of this report, it is confirmed that the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review disclosure of the Group for the year as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance are set out in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 9 to 15 and pages 64 to
96 respectively of the Annual Report. The business review forms
part of this Directors’ Report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Board.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 July 2022
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Corporate Governance Report EXEBRE

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) endeavours to
maintaining its high standard of corporate governance, and
continues to review and reinforce its corporate governance
measures. The Company believes that accountability and reporting
system with high transparency for the Company’s operation has
been in place. Disclosures could also be made timely and
accurately. At the same time, the rights of shareholders can be
treated and protected equitably.

The Company is led by an effective and responsible board of
directors (the “Board”), which is comprised of individuals with high
qualifications and relevant experience. This can ensure that the
Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) maintain good
corporate governance practices and have comprehensive internal
control and risk management systems, so as to cope with the
Group’s development strategies and increase the shareholders’
value.

COMPLIANCE OF CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) published by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited sets out the principles
of good corporate governance and provides two levels of
recommendations:

(@) code provisions, with which issuers are expected to comply,
but from which they may choose to deviate, provided that
they give considered reasons; and

(b) recommended best practices, with which issuers are

encouraged to comply, but which are provided for guidance
only.

Amendments to the CG Code (the “New CG Code”) came into
effect on 1 January 2022 and the requirements under the New CG
Code will apply to corporate governance reports for financial
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Corporate
Governance Report of the Company in the following financial year
and onward will be based on the New CG Code.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the Company has complied with all code provisions in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2022, except for the
following:

Under the code provision C.2.5, the Company should have an
internal audit function. Given the current scale of operations, the
Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board is
directly responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and for the review of its effectiveness. The
Board will continue to review, at least annually, this arrangement
going forward in light of the evolving needs of the Group.
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COMPLIANCE OF MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules sets
a required standard against which Directors must measure their
conduct regarding transactions in securities of their listed
companies. The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions.
Employees of the Group, who are likely possess Inside Information
(as defined under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, the “SFQ”),
have been requested to comply with provisions no less exacting
than the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

THE BOARD

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of
publication of this Annual Report, the Directors of the Company
are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong

For the terms of appointment of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, please refer to page 22. According to the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), at each
annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.
Formal letters of appointment have been issued to all Directors
setting out all key terms and conditions of their appointment. Each
newly appointed Director will also be issued with a letter of
appointment.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Biographies of all Directors are listed in Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management set out on pages 19 to 21.

Except as disclosed in the Directors’ Report, there is no special
relationship, including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among the members of the Board.

The Board and Management

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors
take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic direction of
the Company, setting the objectives of management, monitoring
the performance of management, overseeing the management of
the Company’s relationship with shareholders, ensuring that a
framework of prudent and effective controls is in place to enable
risks to be assessed and managed, setting the Company’s values
and standards, reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management.

When the Board delegates management and administration
functions to management, it has given clear directions on the
powers of management with respect to the circumstances where
management is to report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Company. The Company has formalised functions
reserved to the Board and the management respectively; and the
Board reviews those arrangements periodically to ensure that they
remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.

The management and staff of the Company ensure the successful
implementation of the strategies, business directions and policies
as determined by the Board. In doing so, they must apply business
principles and ethics, which are consistent with those expected by
the Board and Shareholders and other stakeholders.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors help to ensure that the
Board can make independent judgement efficiently and effectively.
They also take the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise.
They scrutinise the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitor performance
reporting. They make a positive contribution to and independent
judgement on the development of the Company’s strategies,
policies, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct through board meetings by bringing in
independent, constructive and informed comments. They form a
strong independent element on the Board.

The Independent Non-executive Directors possess appropriate
professional qualification. Among them, some possess expertise in
accounting or financial management. They give the Board and
Board committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills,
expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through
regular attendance and active participation. Independent Non-
executive Directors attend general meetings to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the view of the shareholders of the
Company.

Each Independent Non-executive Director has submitted an annual
written confirmation to the Company confirming his independence
as regards each of the factors referred to in Rule 3.13(1) to (8) of
the Listing Rules. All Independent Non-executive Directors are
engaged by contract every year and are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association
and the Listing Rules. The Company considered that all
Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ responsibilities

All Directors devote sufficient time and attention to the Group’s
affairs and have actively participated in the Board meetings to
discuss the overall strategies, business directions and policies of
the Group. Throughout the year, the Company held four regular
Board meetings and one general meeting. To ensure that Directors
could obtain all related information to make an informed decision
and to perform their duties and responsibilities, documents for the
Board meeting were supplied to Directors for their consideration
before the meeting according to the regulations set out in the
Listing Rules and code provisions of the CG Code.

The attendance of board meetings and general meeting(s) during
the year is set out on page 58.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements. As at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors
were aware of any material uncertainty relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. As such, the Directors have
prepared the Company’s financial statements on a going concern
basis. Reporting responsibilities of external auditor on the financial
statements are set out in “Independent Auditor’s Report” (pages 97
to 106).

Board proceedings

The Board makes arrangement to provide opportunities for all
Directors to include matters in the agenda of regular Board
meetings. At least 14 days’ notices are given in respect of regular
Board meetings. For regular Board meetings, an agenda and
accompanying board papers are sent, in full, to all Directors in a
timely manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of
board meeting. For all other Board meetings, Directors are given as
much notice as reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.
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Board proceedings (cont'd)

Management provides the Board and Board committees with
adequate and timely information which is accurate, clear,
complete and reliable to enable Directors to make informed
decisions on matters placed before them, and perform their duties
and responsibilities as directors. Management provides adequate
explanations and information to the Board to enable Directors to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before them for approval. In addition, the Board
and each Director have separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management. All Directors have free access to
board papers and related materials. Board papers and related
materials are in a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board to
make informed decisions on matters placed before it. Queries
raised by Directors are provided with a prompt and full response.
Minutes of each Board meeting and Board committee meeting are
kept by the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) and are
available for inspection by any Director.

Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board and Board committees and the decisions reached. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment
and records respectively within a reasonable time after the Board
meeting is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that good information
flow within the Board, Board policies, Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Moreover,
upon request from any Director, the Company provides separate
independent professional advice to Directors to assist them to
perform their duties at the Company’s expense.

If a substantial shareholder or Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a
physical board meeting set up for that purpose and voted on by
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the transaction. Independent Non-executive Directors
who, and whose close associates, have no material interests in the
transaction should be present at that board meeting. Directors’
concerned must abstain from voting on any Board resolution and
will not be counted in the quorum.
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Board effectiveness

A formal, considered and transparent procedure is in place for the
appointment of new directors. Newly appointed directors are
provided with briefing materials to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and business, and are
fully aware of their responsibilities under statute and common law,
the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the
Company’s business and governance policies. In addition, an
orderly succession for appointments is maintained to ensure high
standard of corporate governance of the Company. Every Director
is subject to re-election by rotation at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years.

To ensure Directors’ contribution remains informed and relevant,
the Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training to Directors. In addition, the Company encourages
Directors and the senior management to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge,
skills and understanding of the business and markets in which the
Group operates. Directors are timely updated on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, as well as information related to the
Group’s business and operations, to ensure compliance, enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices and
enable them to discharge duties properly. This has involved various
forms of activities including attending seminars, reading materials
relevant to the Company’s business, director’s duties and
responsibilities.

The records of training of Directors received during the year is set
out on page 58.

Directors’ and Officers’ insurance

The Company has arranged an insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors and officers (as defined in the Listing
Rules) arising from corporate activities.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Chairman of the Board and Managing Director (in this report,
“Managing Director” is equivalent to “Chief Executive” set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules) are two clearly separated roles
and are performed by different individuals. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry,
Chairman of the Board, is responsible for managing the Board. Mr.
TSE Sun Po, Tony, Managing Director, is responsible for the
Company’s operations. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director has been clearly
defined and the written terms of reference have been set.

Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board are as follows:
(@) Providing leadership for the Board;

(b)  Ensuring all Directors are properly briefed on matters to be
discussed at Board meetings;

(c) Ensuring all Directors receive adequate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner;

(d) Ensuring that the Board works effectively, performs its
responsibilities and discusses all key and appropriate issues in
a timely manner;

(e) Ensuring that, the Company Secretary draws up and approves
the agenda for Board meetings on the Chairman’s behalf,
taking into account any matters proposed by other Directors
for inclusion in the agenda;

() Ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with Shareholders and that views of
Shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole;

(g) Ensuring good corporate governance practices are in place
and procedures are established;

(h) Encouraging all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs, giving each Director an
opportunity to express his views at Board meetings, taking the
lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company, encouraging Directors with different views to voice
their concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion of
issues and ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect Board
consensus;
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR (coNT'D)

(i)

Holding meetings with Independent Non-executive Directors
annually without the presence of other Directors; and

Promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contribution of all Directors, in particular Non-
executive Directors, and building constructive relations
between Executive and Non-executive Directors.

The Managing Director is appointed by the Board. His
responsibilities are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Providing leadership for the management;

Implementing and reporting to the Board on the Company’s
strategies;

Overseeing the implementation by the Company of the
objectives set by the Board;

Providing all such information to the Board as is necessary to
enable the Board to monitor the performance of management;

Leading the management of the Company’s relationships with
its stakeholders;

Putting in place programmes for management development
and succession;

Working with the Head of Finance, establishing and
maintaining proper internal controls and systems as well as
disclosure controls and procedures; and

Discharging such duties and authorities as may be delegated
in writing to him by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established on 22 March 2000, is currently
comprised of three Independent Non-executive Directors. They
are:

Mr. WAN Sze Chung
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong (Independent Non-executive Director)

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee is clearly defined
and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and function of
the Audit Committee are as follows:

(@ To be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The audit committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

To develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. The audit
committee should report to the Board, identifying and making
recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;
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Audit Committee (cont’d)

(d)

(e)

To act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them;

To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditor may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary);

To review the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems covering all controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls;

To discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems. This discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function;

To consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings, and review the statements concerning risk
management and internal control to be included in the annual
report;

Where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, to
review and approve the annual internal audit plan, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

To review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

()

(q)

To review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;

To review the Company’s statement on internal control
systems (where one is included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the Board;

To ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

To report to the Board on the matters in the code provision of
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules;

To review arrangements that employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action; and

To consider other topics as defined by the Board.

In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for corporate
governance functions as below:

(a)

To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

To review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim results
for the six months ended 30 September 2021, to discuss the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
with management, and to review the annual budget for audit fees.
In addition, the Audit Committee considered and reviewed the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2022 on 14 July 2022,
and proposed to the Board for their approval.

In addition, during the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies (including the Inside
Information Policy) and practices, reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, reviewed and monitored the Company’s code of
conduct and compliance manual, reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

All members of the Audit Committee actively participated in the
committee’s meetings. During the year, the Audit Committee met
twice, full minutes of which are kept by the Company Secretary.
Draft and final versions of minutes of meetings are sent to all
committee members for their comment and records within a
reasonable time after the meeting. Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review,
and related recommendations were adopted by the Board. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform
its duties and is authorised by the Board to obtain independent
legal or other professional advice.

The attendance of committee members at Audit Committee
meetings during the year is set out on page 58.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the following external auditor’s
remuneration has been incurred by the Company:

External auditor SNEEAZ ZhEm
— Audit services — ERRE
— Non-audit services — FEZRE
Total st

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the fees to PricewaterhouseCoopers,
external auditor of the Group, amounting to HK$1,770,000 were
primarily for audit services and those for non-audit services
amounted to HK$195,000, 9.9% of the total fees. The non-audit
services provided by the PricewaterhouseCoopers was tax
compliance services.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 March 2012. It
is currently comprised of two Independent Non-executive Directors
and one Executive Director. They are:

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Executive Director)
Mr. WAN Sze Chung (Independent Non-executive Director)

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Nomination Committee (cont’d)
The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(@) Review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b) Identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) Assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

(d) Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by
the Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to review
the Board and senior management of the Company. The Committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
reviewed the board diversity policy, reviewed the time and
contribution from Directors, assessed the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors, made recommendations on
the appointment and reappointment of Directors at the 2021
annual general meeting having considered them having the
required character, integrity, independence (as appropriate to
Independent Non-executive Directors), professional knowledge
and experience to fulfil their role and to contribute to the Group,
and discussed the succession planning for the Company’s Board
and senior management.

In addition, the Committee continued to carry out the nomination
policy (including procedures, process and criteria to select and
recommend candidates for directorship). Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review.

The attendance of committee members at Nomination Committee
meetings during the year is set out on page 58.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Nomination Committee (cont’d)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has an appropriate mix of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives. The members of Board possess diverse
competences, spanning business management, advisory and
monitoring, accounting and financial management, legal, brand
building, sales and marketing and I.T. development. The profile of
Directors is set out in Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management on pages 19 to 21.

The Board has adopted its own board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy aims to achieve
diversity of the Board through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience. Board appointments will
be based on objective criteria having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee of the
Company shall review the Board Diversity Policy as appropriate
and make recommendations on any proposed revisions to the
Board.

At present, there are 3 Independent Non-executive Directors in the
Board, accounting for over 1/3 of the total numbers of the Board.
They bring them with diverse academic and professional
qualifications and experience to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 September
2005. It is currently comprised of two Independent Non-executive
Directors and one Executive Director. They are:

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun (Executive Director)
Mr. WAN Sze Chung (Independent Non-executive Director)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and
function of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(a)

To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors” and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
for Non-executive Directors;

To consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

To review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

To review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

To ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration;

To consult the Chairman and/or the chief executive about
their remuneration proposals for Executive Directors (except
the Chairman and/or the chief executive as appropriate). The
committee should have access to professional advice if
necessary; and

To consider other topics as defined by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Remuneration Committee (cont'd)

The Remuneration Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by
the Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.

The remuneration policy of the Group (including Directors) is set
out on pages 30 to 31. Details of remuneration payable to the
senior management, by band, are set out on page 31.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
Executive Directors and senior management of the Company. The
Committee also reviewed and determined the policy for the
remuneration of Executive Directors; assessed their performance
and approved the terms of service contracts of Directors. No
Director had participated in the determination of his or her own
remuneration.

The attendance of committee members at Remuneration
Committee meetings during the year is set out on page 58.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company
Secretary of the Company is approved by the Board.

Our Company Secretary is Mr. YU Chi Wah. He is also the Chief
Financial Officer and is employed on a full-time basis. During the
year, he had taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Our
Company Secretary reports to the Board Chairman, co-ordinates
the supply of information to the Directors and facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors.

During the year, Board and Board committee meeting agenda and
accompanying board papers and minutes were provided by the
Company Secretary on behalf of the Chairman of the Board and
board committee chairmen. Furthermore, all Directors have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that
good information flow within the Board, Board policies, Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.
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BUSINESS MODEL

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The Company’s subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the importing, wholesale, retail and installation of
architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections
and furniture and provision of interior design services, project and
contract management in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

The objective of the Group is to become one of the leading quality
suppliers of architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value
of the Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting
products that commensurate with their lifestyles. In addition, the
Group commits to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally responsible manner whilst balancing the interests
of diverse stakeholders.

Founded over four decades ago, the Group has established
reputation and gained trust from major contractors, property
developers and dealers. The Group also runs retail outlets and
showrooms.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

The Group endeavours to generate sustainable return to
shareholders through:

(@) Leveraging our core competencies in products and services to
generate profits;

(b) Maintaining collaborative relationships with staff members,
customers and suppliers; and

(c) Adopting a prudent financial management policy at all times.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The Board is also
responsible for the risk management and internal control system
and reviewing their adequacy and effectiveness.

The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Process of risk management and internal control systems
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The Process of
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Internal controls encompass a set of rules, policies, and procedures
that the Group implements to provide reasonable assurance that:

(a)

The Group financial reports are reliable;

(b) The Group operations are effective and efficient; and

(c) The Group activities comply with applicable laws and
regulations. The Board, management, and other personnel are
responsible for the internal control system.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’d)

The key components of the Group’s internal control structure are

as follows:

EREERAIPEE @)

BEREERABEZERSHNBRE (&)
REENPEERBNEEZARBIOT ¢

Control Environment

Establishing a foundation for monitoring internal control begins
with an effective tone at the top of the organisation. The reason
of this is so important that management’s attitude regarding
monitoring will determine the selection of evaluators and the
approach to monitoring. The tone set by the management will
influence the way staff members conduct monitoring activities.
In turn, the Board will influence and guide how management
applies and conducts monitoring.
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Control Activities
The internal control of the Group includes the following areas:

e Integrity and ethics

e  Commitment to competence

e Board of Directors and Audit Committee participation
e Management philosophy and operating style

e Organisational structure

e Assignment of authority and responsibility

e Human resource policies and practices
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont'd)
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Information and Communication

The Group's risk management structure is shown as below:

Implementation / Execution
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The Board has the overall responsibility in ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains robust and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group.

The Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, oversees the
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, including financial controls, operational controls
and compliance controls.

The management is the decision-making body of the risk
management control system. It comprises members from
various functions of the Group so as to provide holistic
coverage of the Group as a whole.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
risk during their day-to-day operations. They operate in
accordance with the clearly defined procedures,
responsibilities and limits of authority. They identify and assess
risk associated with their operations and report to the
management for review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL [\ B T 3 2 R B B4 ()

(CONT’'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’d) BEREERABEZRGNBRE (&)

Monitoring

Monitoring of internal control is performed through application
of both on-going evaluations and separate evaluations. These
evaluations ascertain whether other components of internal
control continue to function as designed and intended. In
addition, these evaluations facilitate identification of internal
control deficiencies and communicate them to appropriate
officials responsible for taking corrective actions. More serious
deficiencies are communicated to higher levels of management
and to the Board of Directors when appropriate.
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Risk Assessment

Business risks change over time. The internal control system
needs to be capable of determining that the controls in place
are relevant and effective in addressing new risks. A monitoring
process must be capable of addressing the need for revisions in
the design of controls based on changing risk.

Effective internal control systems must be capable of containing
risks at an acceptable level to ensure effective and efficient
operations on an on-going basis. Thus, continuous feeding of
information and communication help monitoring the changes
and reaction.

By the use of the modern I.T. system to record, maintain and
produce outputs of accurate, complete, and timely information,
the Board and management team can:

(@) Evaluate the risks associated with the updated mode of
collecting, storing, and reporting data (e.g. recording the
sale of merchandise, updating a customer’s address,
preparing a report on sales by product);

(b) Design specific control procedures that help control the
risks applicable to the new design; and

(c) Ensure accountants are familiar with I.T. capabilities and
risks, and recognise the opportunities that the I.T. system
provides to prevent, detect, and correct errors and
irregularities as the business events are executed.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’'d)
Risk assessment identifies and analyses the relevant risks associated
with the Group’s objectives. It forms the basis for determining what
risks need to be controlled and the controls required to manage
them. Our head of risk management has periodic meetings with
directors and the management team to oversee and discuss the
proper operating style with each other.

Directors and the management team will then make decision and
delegate to each department for execution. Through daily
communication and information gathered, Directors and
management team will be able to monitor the daily operation and
risks that might occur, thus be able to prevent or minimise them. It
also makes sure operations are in compliance with laws, rules, and
regulations. At the same time, each department’s missions and
goals are achieved.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company recognises its disclosure obligation under the SFO
and the Listing Rules. The Company conducts its affairs with close
regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission. The Company
has included in its staff handbook a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential information including Inside
Information (as defined under the SFO) in order to make sure
appropriate handling and dissemination of Inside Information is in
place.

Review of risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 March 2022

The Group carried out control activities comprising a diverse range
of policies and procedures, including: conducting reviews of actual
performance, reviewing of performance reports, checking
information processing in transactions, performing physical
controls, analysing performance indicators and dividing and
segregating duties amongst different people. These can help the
Group ensure proper internal control is in place across
departments/divisions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Review of risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 March 2022 (cont'd)

The Board, through the Audit Committee, oversees management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company, including financial
controls, operational controls and compliance controls. During the
year, the Audit Committee conducted an annual review to consider
and discuss the risk management and internal control systems
(including but not limited to, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function) and
reported the same to the Board. The Board conducted an annual
review to consider environment, social and governance performance
and reporting.

During the year, the Company did not have an internal audit
department; details of which are set out on page 33. The Board
reviewed the scope and quality of management’s on-going
monitoring of systems of risks and the internal controls, examined
the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring results
to the Board and Board committees. Based on the review, save as
disclosed under the section “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in
the Directors’ Report, the Board considers that there is no
significant change in the nature and extent of risks and the
Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment since the last annual review. The Board
considered that the systems of risk management and internal
control of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 were
effective and adequate.

Based on the internal financial controls, half-yearly financial
reporting and timely updates on Listing Rules requirements, the
Group’s processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance are considered by the Board as effective.
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ATTENDANCE OF BOARD MEETING, BOARD

COMMITTEE MEETING AND ANNUAL GENERAL

MEETING AND TRAINING RECORDS

The attendance of Directors at Board and Board committee
meetings, the annual general meeting and training records for the

year ended 31 March 2022 is as follows:

Director E=

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry EiE i
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert EiEil
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony AMELLE
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin WEfEE
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun AEmEE
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BIF#7TES
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic BERE

Mr. WAN Sze Chung BRELE
REEEL

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong

Notes:

A:  Attending seminars, conference, forums and/or trainings
B: Reading newspapers, journals and/or updates

Board
-

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4

4/4
4/4
4/4

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Audit
Committee
BRZEY

212
22
22

It is the Company’s policy to have open communication and
disclose information in a fair manner. Information disclosure is a
key means to enhance corporate governance standard.
Shareholders can assess the Company’s performance based on the
information disclosed and provide feedback to the Company.
Information relating to the Group and its business, together with its
financial conditions, are disclosed in this report and the Company’s

website at www.ebon.com.hk.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (coNT'D)

Shareholders’” Communication Policy

The Board has adopted a Shareholders” Communication Policy*
aiming to provide the Company’s shareholders, in appropriate
circumstances, the investment community at large, with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, so that Shareholders are able to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow them and
the investment community to engage actively with the Company.

To achieve this, the Company has established a number of
channels to maintain an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders
and the investment community. The Company is committed to
providing information to Shareholders and the investment
community mainly through the Company’s financial reports
(interim and annual reports), annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as making
available all corporate communications on the Company’s website
at www.ebon.com.hk. The Shareholders” Communication Policy is
reviewed annually to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with
the prevailing regulatory and other requirements. Effective and
timely dissemination of information to Shareholders and the
investment community shall be ensured at all times.

* For the purpose of this Policy, reference to the investment community is
intended to include the Company’s potential investors as well as analysis
reporting and analysis the Company’s performance.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

(@) Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s registrar. Please refer to
pages 4 to 5 of this Annual Report for the address of the
Company’s principal and branch share registrars.

(b) Shareholders and the investment community may at any
reasonable time make a request for the Company’s
information, send their written enquiries and concerns to the
Board to the extent such information is publicly available.
Such requests, enquiries and concerns shall be addressed to
the Company Secretary of the Company at its Head Office as
follows:

The Company Secretary
16th-18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (conT'D)

General Meetings

All registered shareholders shall receive either notice of the annual
general meeting and extraordinary general meeting (together the
“Meeting”) or equivalent notification letter by post or by electronic
means. The notice of the Meeting contains an agenda, resolutions
proposed and a proxy form. All shareholders, whose shares are
registered in the register of members, are entitled to attend the
Meeting. Shareholders who cannot attend the Meeting can appoint
their proxies or the chairman of the meeting as their proxies by
completing the proxy form enclosed with the notice of the meeting
and returning it to the Company’s share registrar. Pursuant to the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Listing Rules, all votes
of shareholders at the Meeting will be taken by poll.

Procedures for demanding a vote by poll, together with the notice
of the Meeting, have been enclosed with a circular despatched to
the shareholders. The procedures are read out at the Meeting by
the chairman of the meeting so as to make sure shareholders are
familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll. The
Company arranges to address questions from shareholders in the
Meeting. In addition, separate resolutions for each substantially
separated issues will be proposed to the Meeting for the approval
of shareholders.

General meeting is the principal opportunity and ideal venue for
shareholders to meet and exchange views on the Company’s
business with the Directors and the management. An annual
general meeting is an annual significant event for shareholders and
the Board to exchange constructive opinions. All Directors
(including the Chairman of the Board) shall attend the annual
general meeting. Apart from attending the annual general meeting,
the Chairman of the Board shall arrange the chairmen of each
Board Committee to attend and answer questions at the annual
general meeting. The Company’s auditor shall also attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (coNT'D)

Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out when considering any payment of a dividend, the
Board shall take into account of (i) the profitability of the Group for
the financial year; (ii) the Group’s general financial condition
supporting its normal operations; (iii) the Group’s actual and
expected business performance; (iv) the Group’s overall results of
operation, financial performance and liquidity position; (v) the
Group’s expected capital commitments, future cash requirements
and future business development plans and prospects such as
market conditions; (vi) retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members of the Group; (vii) the
general economic conditions, business cycles of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Group; and (viii) any other factors that the Board considers
relevant and appropriate. The Board will continually review the
Dividend Policy from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1. The Company has only one class of shares and the Articles of
Association of the Company set out the rights of our
shareholders.

2. Shareholders have right to receive corporate communications
issued by the Company.

3. Shareholders whose shares held in Tricor Abacus Limited
(“Tricor”) may notify the Company from time to time through
Tricor if they wish to receive our corporate communications.

4. Shareholders are furnished with comprehensive background
information in a timely manner concerning the matters to be
decided at general meetings and they are well informed of the
rules including the voting procedures that govern general
meetings.

5. Subject to the Articles of Association and the rules prescribed
by the Stock Exchange from time to time, shareholders have
right to participate and vote in general meetings. Any
shareholder not attending a general meeting can give proxy to
vote on his/her behalf. Forms of Proxy are sent to shareholders
of the Company together with the notice of meeting.

6.  Shareholders have right to raise questions at general meetings.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (conT'D)

7.

10.

11.

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may request the Board, through the Company
Secretary, to convene an extraordinary general meeting.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of
shareholders at the annual general meeting will be taken by
poll. The chairman of the meeting will explain at the
commencement of the meeting the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll. On a poll, every shareholder present in
person or by proxy will have one vote for every share held. A
shareholder who is a corporation will be present in person if
a duly authorised representative of such shareholder is present
at the meeting. A shareholder present in person or by proxy
who is entitled to more than one vote does not have to use all
his or her votes or to cast all his or her votes the same way.
The result of the poll shall be deemed to be a resolution of
the meeting. After the closure of a general meeting, the poll
results will be published on the Company’s website at
www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews website at
www.hkexnews.hk.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in key corporate
governance decisions. Sufficient time is allowed for
shareholders to consider the candidates being nominated
before the general meetings.

The Company ensures that votes cast are properly counted
and recorded. Voting results are verified by independent
scrutineers and announced in a timely manner after the
closure of general meeting and posted on the Company’s and
HKEXnews websites.

Shareholder who has a material interest in the subject
transaction may be required to abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution at the relevant general meeting as required
by the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (cONT'D)

Proposing a person for election as a Director

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at any general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge a notice, signed by the shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed), and a notice signed by the person
to be proposed of his willingness to be elected (together the
“Notices”) at the Head Office or at the Registration Office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such Notices
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if the Notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgement of such
Notices shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles of Association or
the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to put
forward new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who
wish to put forward a new resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s memorandum of association (the “Memorandum
of Association”) and Articles of Association, in both English
and Chinese, are available on the Company’s website at
www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews website at www.hkexnews.
hk. There was no significant change to the Memorandum of
Association and Articles of Association of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2022. In order to (i) bring the Articles of
Association in line with the relevant requirements of the applicable
laws of the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules and the Companies
Ordinance; and (ii) make other consequential and housekeeping
amendments, the Board proposes to seek approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to amend
the existing Articles of Association by way of adoption of the
second amended and restated Articles of Association (the “New
Articles of Association”) in substitution for, and to the exclusion of,
the existing Articles of Association. Please refer to the circular of
the Company dated 28 July 2022 for further details of the changes
to the existing Articles of Association to be brought about by the
adoption of the New Articles of Association.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report &% - #2RERRE

OVERVIEW

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. It
provides an annual summary of the Group’s environmental and
social performance for the financial year ended 31 March 2022.
For corporate governance, please refer to pages 33 to 63.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This Report aims to provide a balanced representation of the
Group’s performance in the environmental and social (employment
and labour practices, operating practices and community
involvement) aspects and covers the Group’s operations in Hong
Kong. The Group will expand the scope of disclosures when the
data collection system is better established.

The Group’s operations in Hong Kong:
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Note: Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers our operations in Hong Kong
only. Our Hong Kong operations represent the core of all of our operations,
contributing over 90% of our Group's turnover in the financial year ended 31
March 2022.
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ASSURANCE

This Report has been independently verified by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency, with the scope and basis of the
verification set out in the Verification Statement of this Report.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board has delegated the environmental and social performance
to an ESG workgroup (“ESG Workgroup”) which comprises of a
director of the Company. The Workgroup translates the Board’s
vision into execution, gathers and analyses data collected from
various departments and reports back to the Board. The Board has
the overall responsibility for the Group’s sustainability performance
and ESG reporting. Details of how the Board and ESG Workgroup
collaborate are set out on page 67. This Report was approved by
the Board on 29 June 2022.

VISION

Sustainability is a core part of values of E. Bon. The Group
envisions a community being knowledgeable and responsible in
their daily life and inspires others to do the same; and therefore
commits to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally responsible manner whilst balancing the interests
of diverse stakeholders.

STRATEGY

When we execute business strategies, our sustainability vision
enables us to take account of our responsibility to the environment
and society in general. Areas such as occupational health and
safety, product responsibility and operating compliance are
identified and considered relevant to the Group by the Board. The
Group, through the ESG Workgroup, seeks to formulate policies
and approaches in order to address these areas.

)

FHRECREERERIRBURE
BEEFRABELERA 6 -

REHER

ESTECHBRERMEXRAZETERER - HERE
ATHEATRE  HERERTHED  HEBEXR
RA-—BES -ZITHFEAKEFTENEIBLA]T
B WERIMESHFIRENEE  AHESER
F o EFEHAKENTRHEARRRRERERER 48
REABERIERRET -ESFREBR - HERE
BTEANBESRNFE  B2RE7H - AR
SER-ZBISFAASTAAEESSHE -

R

AHEEREBBITHNRVEE - AEBERAR
LAREE  BUBIRELEELERTESE 1S
FREEERTEFHENFG  LREEREF
—RHEE-

REE

EHTEBRER  RANTSEXREASERM
REAZEHRERGEERNET ESSCHETE
ERABE*REEZE EREARKESHREHR
HEAEEERE  AKEBEBRE  HERERIHE
AHEBRK B8 LB ZE RS -

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

65



66

Environmental, Social and Governance Report &% - #2RERRE

POLICY

At E. Bon, sustainability is embedded in our business operations
that create sustainable value with its stakeholders in economic,
environmental and social dimensions. The Group has developed a
dedicated sustainability policy which directs its operations towards
the best practice in areas such as business growth, environmental
protection, employment and labour practices, operating practices
and community investment. The sustainability policy commits the
Group to:

*  Meeting all applicable legal and regulatory requirements on
sustainability issues;

e Pursuing good practices of sustainability in its operations;

e Implementing policies relating to business growth,
environmental protection, workplace quality, operating
practices and community investment;

e Encouraging our staff to be proactive in sustainability issues;

*  Promoting sustainability awareness along its value chain;

e Engaging our stakeholders in the sustainability process; and

*  Monitoring and improving the sustainability performance.
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APPROACH

Implementation and Governance Structure

The Group adopts both top-down and bottom-up approaches to
manage sustainability risks. The implementation and governance
structure allows the Group to communicate concerns and solutions
related to sustainability risks effectively.

Outcome
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The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s
sustainability performance and ESG reporting. The Board sets out
the sustainability vision of the Group and has delegated its
execution and monitoring to an ESG workgroup which comprises
of a director of the Company. The Board reviews and provides final
approval for the sustainability approach, strategy and performance
at least once a year.

The ESG Workgroup is pivotal to the success of ESG management:
it lays down sustainability strategies based on the Board’s vision,
determines material aspects with reference to stakeholders’
responses, gathers information from departments and functional
heads and conducts analyses, directly reports back to the Board on
the Group’s performance and its recommendations.

Stakeholders
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Implementation and Governance Structure (cont'd)

The management is the decision-making body of environmental
and social performance. It comprises members from various
functions of the Group to ensure that the Group’s policies are
working towards the best practice in areas such as business growth,
environmental protection, employment and labour practices,
operating practices and community investment.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
sustainability risks during their day-to-day operations. They identify
key performance indicators (KPIs) associated with their operations,
monitor and report to the management. In addition, as risk owners,
they identify and assess sustainability risks and report to the
management for review.

Stakeholder Engagement

The expectation of stakeholders is evolving and so as our
sustainability strategy. The Group regularly engages with
stakeholders in order to keep our sustainability strategy relevant to
stakeholders and our business.

The Group determines its sustainability strategy through a
systematic process including:

e Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests
e Engage — Interact with stakeholders

e Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

o Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes

T &t (@)

Bk ERERE(E)
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MEIRFETHERRER  YRETEERFR
o

FHrE2H

FOHOENHETEHER RNV ITFERRERBL
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests

During the year, the ESG Workgroup took into consideration of
current course of business and refined the sampling of stakeholders.
Findings of the ESG Workgroup were submitted to the Board for

discussions and actions where necessary.

Engage — Interact with stakeholders

We have maintained various communication channels to interact
with stakeholder groups. This allows us to promptly understand
and address their concerns more quickly. Set out below are major

daily communication channels:

Key internal stakeholders
EBRBHHH

Staff members
BT

¢ Daily communications * Meetings

HEEa Bk

Board of Directors
34

o Staff activities
BTES

ance appraisals

Shareholders
RR

e Corporate website

NCIEED:

Government
and regulatory
organisations

s, seminars
&

Suppliers
HAER

* Meetings

Other stakeholders
HithiF o &

@

[ o0leing forward

STAY
N\ ]

== 3

2000 ULNG

~~

T &t (@)

FESRGE)

a8 — BBIFF 0 & R IR Flla

RER - RBE HEREATFEAKERENNES
28 BLEHEMRE -RE  HERERATEAN
MAGERTEX TFTES S UMW ELZRERE
T8 -

8 — B GELE
EMZEBEEEERBETEANSNEHEBREER
B BEEHRMERB TR AR EREEINS
He UTATENWAEBBERE

Key external stakeholders
EBHIBHOH

Customers
EF
A

¢ Daily communications

Uit

¢ Daily communications
Zkoy b

® Meetings

Non-government
organisations
and community

FBFARRLE

e website
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders (cont’d)

In addition, we regularly carry out materiality assessment to
determine important issues to both internal and external
stakeholders of the Group. It is an on-going process as material
issues may change over time. Based on the results obtained in the
last engagement cycle and the management’s insights, the ESG
Workgroup identified 13 material topics which would have a direct
or indirect impact on the Group’s ability to create, preserve or
erode economic, environmental and social value of itself, its
stakeholders and society at large. The Workgroup asked
stakeholders to indicate topics that they considered the Group
should give priority. This process enables us to categorise various
groups of stakeholders into an engagement matrix: (1) engage, (2)
communicate and (3) inform stakeholders.

FtrESRGE)

B — EFHETE (F)

LEoh  HMEMETERMNMG  BEEAEBEAMISOEIBEENZ
B HREARETHERRBRL  HEBMTEATEET BREL-
E2ERBHESHERREEENRME BRI HERELSTFECHEE
T=EEXZEE  ZEZESEEI[MELENLRE/E - REHESEH
BE EBNEDNERELENSE BERGSEERED - THEAERE
NEEHFRERDAEEERZELZBNEE - ZBREERMEAB SRS
NEFRBA—ESEEEE: (1)2HE  QXRRO)ASFHE -

T &t (@)
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Review last engagement
cycle results

B L ESRERNER

Link to business significance
based on management insights

RIBEEE RFRE
HEBNEEM

Identify material topics on
sustainability
EIRESE (30PN 1

Engage stakeholders to
prioritise
ARDEREEERT

Analyse engagement
findings

SMSRER

Formulate engagement
matrix

HESRE R E




APPROACH (cONT'D) T8t @)
Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd) K ESR(E)
Engage — Interact with stakeholders (cont’d) S0 — B E T8 ()

In this engagement cycle, concerns on occupational safety and HERXSEBHS  BEZ2EREE EREME &
health, product responsibility, operating compliance and financial ZE&RRHBERBEESRSEE -
performance are highlighted.

Environment B

High concern
1 Energy efficiency &

FERE greenhouse gas emissions
RS RAEREIN
2 Use of other major materials
» Hitb T EEREA
3] 3 Climate resilience
o RIRRE N
24z
g8
g ﬂi‘- Economic &K Social #&
= 1212 06 7 4 Financial performance 6 Staff retention and
£ 9 8 BRE development
..Q_',) 6 5 Operating compliance L R
é 1 a & wmam 7 Oc;l}:paﬁﬁnal safety
3 2 12 10 Customer privacy ;;g;;ggg
¢ EEALE 8 Product responsibility
. 11 Procurement practices EREE
LO\\/\’//conS\ern — High P&on‘\c\ern e .
szl 2z Internal Stakeholders FEEE 12 Research & development BFERBE
N etk 13 Local community involvement
REEDE HESR

Top priority BEE#%

Financial performance
0% prmzem

M Product responsibility
| ESEE

20%

200 Energy efficiency & greenhouse gas emissions
RO R E R BN

B Customer satisfaction

M =nEE

. Occupational safety and health
R RR R

409

The assessment results were discussed and validated by the #eEmeEBEOSARRET(GLER - KEERE
management of the Group. The Group has decided to continue its gz HEBRIAT A | 89 THE - 1t T3 B FATE L B0
efforts on people issues where the Group has a relatively high | xeEEgIBExRYSRYEES -
sustainability impact.
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

During the year, the Group obtained stakeholders” priorities to
work on over the coming year:

e Continue policy enhancement

> Review our current policies on major ESG subject areas
of staff safety and health, product quality and business
ethics

> Complete the collection of data in order to make
comparisons feasible

e Increase disclosure coverage

> Increase the disclosure in key performance indicators
(KPI) where material

Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes

The management is responsible to review the stakeholder
engagement process to ensure a sufficient coverage of stakeholders
and issues. Feedback of publication of ESG report is also included
in the evaluation process.

SUSTAINABILITY MEASUREMENT AND
MONITORING

The Group adopted Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules as the
sustainability measurement framework. It involves measuring
sustainability performance and setting targets in quantitative
manner. The ESG Workgroup regularly measure, record and
analyse key performance indicators (KPIs) for the Board’s
discussion and establishment of improvement plans.

The Group has set a reduction target of 5% in total greenhouse gas
(GHG) emission, non-hazardous waste disposal, total energy use
and water consumption from the performance recorded for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Baseline”) by the year ending 31
March 2024.

T &t (@)
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ENVIRONMENT

The Group endeavours to minimise pollution and protect the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of
energy and waste. We first implement business activities for which
we bear responsibility and address the environmental issues by
integrating environment considerations in our business. We create
environmental awareness amongst our staff members and
whenever possible and practical to do so. We aim to contribute to
the sustainable future and be in harmony with the global
environment.

A1 Emissions

Our electricity consumption accounts for a major part of its GHG
emissions, with local transport contributing less than 5% of the
total GHG emission. Measures aimed at improving energy
efficiency are outlined on page 75.

Deliveries to the same district are gathered in bundles to minimise
travel routes, hence reduce the use of petrol and emissions to air.
In addition, we encourage our staff to use public transport; for
those that are not accessible by public transport means, to carpool
when travelling on business. Discharges to water are made through
public sewages system. There was no discharge to water and/or
land. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to air
emissions during the year. The Group has set to reduce total GHG
emissions per employee by 5% by 2024 from the Baseline.

The Group pays attention to hazardous waste such as e-waste. We
have implemented plans to reduce the quantity of e-waste as
outlined on page 77. Disposal of hazardous waste is conducted
safely in accordance to relevant regulations. There was no
prosecution to the Group in relation to hazardous waste handling
during the year.

i

5

FEERNBSREEREZERE  BBRERRE
B BAOERERRBEEEYAREREL — 20 -
BEMELEUEERCEEETEHREE Y ELE
EBRBETEHRENTEURYREME - A
BOETERRRERE SBEIEUERIET
TRRTERRRER - RMA LB THEREK
RERBRMEZE—2H -

A1 B
BFWBEEREEREEREENERE  AER
HREREEMEENLHTRES% - REERERE
HIFE A SE 75 5 o

RXNZHEEENENETHE UREFTEX
AR MM EARE RIS RYAEER © It
N BASEBEIFERAARTEIR  ERELEE
AHZBEEZIER > HEFRZHEZARE I
JRE o EIUKEESIEB A RISKKRERGETT - K&
ERERARR, T c RAEE - AEH
WERISZEEEIFERNIRE - XEECFEE =
E_MFESEEENAERBHNEESRELESR
WA 5% ©

FEBMEREFUREAZTERY - KMCSHITE
BRLEFHRBE  FREANFE77H - BEER
MERREERGIZERE - RAFE  AEBELE
RIEHRAERRYEENRIE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report &% - #2RERRE

ENVIRONMENT (CONT'D) BB @)

A1 Emissions (cont’d) A1 BB (4R)

Non-hazardous waste is sorted in accordance with the possibility EEEBEZYUIER | WATEEERAIRS 1 - RAF
of re-use. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to E > AEBEUEZINERAEZERYEENRE - K

non-hazardous waste handling during the year. The Group has set &SBEEFEIN _—_Z_NFKEERENEEEEY
to reduce non-hazardous waste disposal per employee by 5% by EEB2{EER[HD5% -
2024 from the Baseline.

Total air emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes) BERPEM AR E (S0E 1) (W) 0.005 0.005
NOXx (tonnes) RELY (W) 0.004 0.004
SOx (tonnes) =1/ N0 0.000 0.000
Particulate matter (tonnes) SR T (W) 0.000 0.000

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) BEREENEE (BE1R2)

(CO,e tonnes) (=& LR Em) 510.268 559.695
Direct emissions (Scope 1) (CO,e tonnes) HEHER (EE) (ZEbREE0) 14.817 14.859
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (CO,e tonnes) REHER (BE2) (=8 L EE0) 495.451 544.837
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per floor area  EB{1@HEE &K B K (8E2)

(CO,e tonnes/m?) (ZELRE 2N, F5XK) 0.054 0.067
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per employee  S&{ESHREEK (8E2)

(CO,e tonnes/employee) (Z&EtEEME, ES) 3.697 4.066
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) EEEmEBNHREE (BE1K2)

per floor area (CO,e tonnes/m?) (ZE L E 2N, F5K) 0.055 0.069
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) BEREENHREE (BE1Kk2)

per employee (CO,e tonnes/employee) (Z&EtmEEM ES) 3.808 4177

Total hazardous waste produced (tonnes)! BEBRYELRS (NF)"

Total non-hazardous waste produced (tonnes) EEREZEYEL LS (W) 8.554 7.830
Total non-hazardous waste produced ENEAREMELEEEREEYLEE

per floor area (tonnes/m?) (M&,SEJ5K) 0.001 0.001
Total non-hazardous waste produced BHEREEFMELEEEREYRE
per employee (tonnes/employee) (W8, fE8) 0.064 0.058
! Disposal of hazardous waste is negligible. ! EEBEYEBEMTRE -
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A2 Use of Resources

Electricity

We have been phasing out old air-conditioners by energy-saving
ones. Indoor temperature remains at 23°C-25°C.

Besides, old halogen lamps in shops have also been gradually
replaced by LED spotlights. It consumes less energy, helps lower
the indoor temperature (which requires less air-conditioning) but
maintains approximate brightness. We are planning to phase out
fluorescent lightings from T8 to T5 which consumes less energy.
The Group has set to reduce total energy use per employee by 5%
by 2024 from the Baseline.

Our promotional light boxes go automatically off from midnight to
morning to reduce energy consumption.

RiIE @)

A2EREH

)

BMEELSRBAENEH  EmMFEAHEEHE - ER
BEAIFEN23°CE25°Ce

e EHTPHNERARENRCESERBLEDBY
& o LEDBXAEHERDEER  BBRBEERNERE
(ILBAZ%ER)  LEABEENSE - RMETEIE
SREEEDRERNTS BB TS L HE - RE
Bt S NFEEREENEREALE
MEEZHD 5% o

EMWERERRTREFE LB BB - LU 8
TFOHFE
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A2 Use of Resources (cont’d)

Water

Water consumed is for hygienic purpose. Labels of “treasure every
drop” are posted at prominent place next to taps to encourage staff
members to minimise the use of water. We plan to replace old taps
with sensor-type and/or add flow regulators to control water flow
when feasible. As a supplier of home fittings, we provide a range of
products with green features (eco-sensor, flow regulator, smart
green design) to the market. The Group has set to reduce total
water consumption per employee by 5% by 2024 from the
Baseline.

RIE (@)

A2 ERER (&)

7k

SEEAKDREFERSE - KEEZTEBERNNVE
MEDESEE|Z8 SREIRERDAK-
Bt ES EXKEEE RN BENKEE &%
RATHERTABEREADREHKRE - EH
REREBHER KA TSEESERRER R
REFESS - REFEEE  BEEBRRAR) - AEEE
TR R _NMFHEREENAREKEREER
WA 5% o

Total energy consumption (MWh) B EAEESE QKR 774117 855.288
Total direct energy consumption (MWh)? HiZRS AR QKRR 51.875 50.215
Total direct energy consumption BUEAEBNEEEREAEE

per floor area (MWh/m?) GKE B, K) 0.006 0.006
Total direct energy consumption EEEENEEFEREES

per employee (MWh/employee) kKRR 1ES) 0.387 0.375
Total indirect energy consumption (MWh)  BissRA%EE CKRE) 722.241 805.073
Total indirect energy consumption B Z2HERNEZEERAEE

per floor area (MWh/m?) (KFBEFAHK) 0.078 0.100
Total indirect energy consumption BEREENBERRARES

per employee (MWh/employee) kR 1EE) 5.390 6.008

Water consumption (m?) FEKE (LFK) 976.645 1,065.473

Water consumption per floor area (m?*/m?) BEUEEAEENELE
(LR FHK) 0.106 0.132
Water consumption per employee BHEENEKE(IFKES)
(m*/employee) 7.288 7.951

Total packaging material (tonnes) BEMRAS (H) 2.765 2.877
Total packaging material per floor area BEUREEENEEMHRE

(tonnes/m?) (Mg E753K) 0.000 0.000
Total packaging material per employee BEEENERMBEE (H ES)
(tonnes/employee) 0.021 0.021

2 Figure calculated with reference to EIA US.

2 HFIRIEEIA USEHE ©
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
Electricity: Reduction
Details of electricity reduction is set out on page 75.

Paper: Reduction

All office paper and almost all paper for printing the Group’s
publications are Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)-certified or
recycled paper, except old publication (such as catalogues) which
is yet to disseminate. Not only adopting FSC certified paper, the
Group encourages the use of paperless communication. If printing
is necessary, we encourage environmentally friendly printing
manner (such as to print on both sides, reduce font size and
margin). For internal reference document, we upload to intranet or
circulate hardcopies instead of printing one copy for each staff
member. In addition, paper collection tray is placed next to printer
to gather single-side-printed paper for re-use.

Our box packaging fits the size of goods so as to minimise the use
of paper and provide the best protection to the goods contained.
The materials of our carton boxes fulfil relevant safety standards.
Besides, we encourage the use of carton boxes for multiple times.

o FSC is an independent, non-governmental, not-for-profit organisation
established to promote environmentally appropriate, socially beneficial, and
economically viable management of the world’s forests.

Electronic devices: Re-use

Technology advancement leads to shorter lifespan of electronic
devices. Certain equipment becomes obsolete or incompatible to
our operations after software upgrades. We are aware of potential
environmental and health hazards related to disposal of e-waste.
Hence, we have adopted the following initiative:

e  Obsolete: Donate to non-governmental organisations such as
Hong Kong Caritas Computer Recycle Project

Total paper consumption (tonnes) HOEFER S (1)
Office paper (tonnes) WAE A ()
Paper for printing publications (tonnes) FTENTIHp A 4% ()

RiIE @)

ASRERRXARER
L HE
BBEBD>ASHBHNEE °

B AR

FERAEABRLTEEETIY ALK BHRM
EHZESRFNFER  HERBERENES
HY (NERB 8 BRI REBTERARMER
ZEERRE  THEEREK BN - WFEHE -
BMEEREOITENAR (FINEEITE - /788
MERE) - HRRBSEH KM LEZABER
@R MIEBBUREITEN—HEIAR - thid » KR
WESMERITENHSE - IWEBEITENWRR - U
EEA-

EMWEERSRERNRTAN  tNRERDH
HERBFABENENREHRERE - RABBOM
REEZIMBERZEE - WO HMEBEEAE KM
/N

* AMEEZEERBUFBRMELRIEE RIANS
EBERGHERELEE B4 LABENELE L
ATHEE o

EREBFRE

BEESHEESTFRENEASH - 5 TRENRK
ARE  2EBRIEAEEFIGA - HAXE
FEEEEFHRNBEERERBERE AR
BT LT

o B BETHIFES PNEBHBEM
BETTE

9.912 8.115
7.840 6.748
2.072 1.368
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A4 Climate Change

RIE (@)

A4 RIRE{L

We aim to build resilience to climate change by identifying and HMEEEBHFIREERBESCABREE - U
managing climate change risks and opportunities, and by REEEERESCHNREIELBERREH
developing strategies to adapt to climate change and to reduce our 2% ; WHAIAEEHRTIENEEMTE

negative impacts to climate.

The table below sets out our findings of significant climate-related T & &5 & 1% E X RIR AR R b R B B FP A 45

risks and opportunities:

Physical risks
BiEER

Acute physical risks, such as super typhoon and
extreme weather events
BB - B RE R R R im KRB

Chronic physical risks, such as rising temperature
ferEREkE  fIMRR LA

Transition risks

ERER
Technology risks, such as the use of technology to
lower emissions
BT - a0 155 FRE B B A B AT
Market risks, such as shift towards green products
miSEE  flngeERBBRT

Market risks, such as higher insurance premiums

FIBER - FIARBIER

Green products
BeEm

E

More spending on repair and improving adaptive
capacity of premises

IRINAEE IR S YIS E R RE 0 MY AR RERE X

Business closure, leading to loss of revenue

(E R _E L¢3 S

More spending on cooling

12 kBB X

Increased cost of raw materials
SRR AN 3G 0

Substitution of existing products with eco-friendly
options

BAEERPRRERRNL

Higher insurance costs

R B2 AR A< 48 0

Increased revenue because customers are willing
to pay more on green products using advanced
technologies
EFEEXNBSNERABERALENRNECER

LU EsE AN
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A4 Climate Change (cont'd)

Our near term targets are to adapt to impacts of climate change.
With extreme weather occurring more frequently, we place
sandbags in low-lying areas and install floodgates when heavy
rainfall is approaching. Our premises are well-maintained with
resilient elements so as to lower potential damages resulting from
extreme weather and attain better insurance packages. We make
use of e-communications to keep close contact with staff members,
customers and suppliers to ensure business continuity in place. We
provide a range of products with green features to the market.

In the long term, we endeavour to reduce carbon footprint in our
operations to help mitigate climate changes. The Group has set a
reduction target of 5% in total energy use and total GHG emission
from the Baseline by the year ending 31 March 2024. We regularly
monitor our progress for review and continuous improvement, in
addition to reporting the performance on an annual basis.

SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes its success, long-term growth and development
depend upon the quality, performance and commitment of its staff
members. We are committed to providing equal opportunity to our
staff, matching the right people with the right job, and offering
them a suitable platform to develop and excel in their career.
Besides, we keep in mind to treat all staff members fairly and
equally. We are committed to the provision of a healthy and safe
workplace and encourage the work-life balance of staff members.

RiIE @)

A4 RIREL (&)
EFNEHESERAERRBRECHNTE - BERR
AREE - BHNEEEHEREDR  XHERXHRE
BIZEAR - HMNMERESE - ARRBKRIE
AnE - BEERRRRERNEERE  LESE
FHRBAR - BMFAIAEFENRET - FPRMA
FEEREBRIBHE - UREARBENERN - RfiED
BRHE-FZIEFRABHNER

REME » HMBOREDEEPHREY - BBEZE
RIFE - AEBCREBE_ZFE-_NF=A
St-RLEFESEREREERRERBIRA
EBREEREDS%NER - REFRERRIL R
MEEHERTER  UHBERSERE -

e

BRERETESR

FEFEEEE R REERRER  BEET
ZEE - REAREAE - ZAPABNIRETIRHTFEHE
T AASEARMESBENTE  BETIBREMRK
TEMFNSEE - LI BAKAECHABEET -
BEMC - BB O RURERZZNTARE - LR
B TAFEaA R o
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B1 Employment

As at 31 March 2022, our workforce in operations in Hong Kong
was recorded at 136 employees.

Our employment policy adheres to statutory requirements
including but not limited to the Mandatory Provident Fund,
Statutory Minimum Wages, Employees’ Compensation Insurance
and Paid Annual Leave. Competitive packages are offered to
attract, retain and motivate competent individuals. We are
dedicated to promoting equal opportunities for all of our
employees in different areas, including recruitment, compensation
and benefits, training, staff promotion and transfer. All staff
members are assessed based on their ability, performance and
contribution, irrespective of their gender, age, disability, family
status, race, religious beliefs or sexual orientation.

We provide employee benefits such as medical allowance and
transport allowance. The Group supports the staff’s family life by
providing children’s scholarship. The Group has joined the
Government’s gender mainstreaming network “Gender Focal
Point”.

T2

EEREIER(E)

B11E1E
RZB-_F=A=+—H0 ' AKENEEBEIA
#HHE136%

BMNERBEEFEEERE  BFEETRNEH
HAEE EZEREIE BEWHERRBEAFF
B RPEHARZ N 2HMNTBURMR BRRH
BESRAT - AKEINEEEABLEEESRE
BFEHE  ETRERE  HFMRERN  8#I &
ARAE - AEBDREET 2880 - REMERME
HEE - MAREMER - Fi - BE - RERR - &
B~ RBUS SR e

FEBERHBEEDRTBRUEREREF UK
FRRES  REEIZRELE - AKECZHE
TR MR R A4S [ MR REB A o
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SOCIAL (coNTD) HE @
Employment and Labour Practices (cont’d) BREREIER (&)
B1 Employment (cont'd) B1 fE1% ()

All of our staff members work on full time basis. Our workforce is AEBETIHEZBET » HARWT :
comprised of:

Gender 43|

Male
B
45%

Female
ey

Turnover rate BEEER Turnover rate B

6.78% 9.21%

The overall turnover rate of workforce in Hong Kong: 8.15% EBETERBBE 8.15%
Age group Fi#R4 5! Length of service Br# 4 48

Turnover rate BEFEE

2.50% Turnover rate BEBEER 0-3 vears
19.05% gggyrp

Below 30 >3 -5 years

. =+MT BB=FhEF
30-50 . >5-10 years

. =TERT HBBRETF
Above 50 . >10- 15 years
BBE+ BB t+ETRE

> 15 years

BB+ RF

Turnover rate B
9.47%
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B2 Health and Safety

Our workplace is kept clean and tidy, with adequate work space
for staff members to work. Apart from that, a number of initiatives
have been carried out to increase the staff awareness in health and
safety at work:

e Occupational safety briefing

> Guide new staff members especially those work in
warehouse or go to construction sites

> Staff members are able to stop work if they feel unsafe or
is not properly trained

e Staff handbook (detailing health and safety guidelines)
Warehouse and shop frontline staff members are under supervision
to ensure they work safely. All staff members, before going to
construction sites, have attended safety training. When entering
construction sites, they are equipped with safety helmet and
briefed by relevant safety officers.

In light of the outbreak of Coronavirus during the year, we have
implemented the following measures to safeguard the safety of our
staff members, such as:

e Raise the frequency of cleaning in workplace

e Place air purifiers in workplace

e Provide surgical masks, disinfection products and rapid test
kits to all staff members

e Take body temperature of staff members

Number and rate of work-related BEX=%F (8EEREE)

fatalities occurred in each of the BRI THWAH
past three years including the Kte®
reporting year

Lost days due to work injury HIBELAIERR

T2

ERRLSTEE (&)

B2REHZ R
BRANIESFRES IR RATEIZHAN
THEZR - 1t BRPMCHESENEMESETH
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> AFMABEI (LHEREARAERZEN
BHET)REMHIES

> BINBIRZEHAREEEEIATE
1R

o EBEIFMGrfREEZEIES)
ERREHAGNETIYZEE  URREMNZE
T -FIBEINEAREMRBRAIC S ML 2

o RIENRSEMBE - REAMBE 2B R IEUD
BRI ANHEIRE -

ERFARBERHESH » RS ERILT H 1L
REETZZ - i :

o EINERIESAHIRE

o HEIEEAHMEZERFH

o M[ABEIRMISOE . - HEAMRRER
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E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22



SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B3 Development and Training

The Group maintains an open, interactive and motivating working
environment for our staff members. The management reviews its
training and career development programmes with employees. A
wide spectrum of training programmes is provided to cater the
needs of staff members across different roles and positions.

Set out below are some training and development programmes:

e Professional development: Product

e Professional development: Hard skills and soft skills

e Compliance and legal programme

*  On-board training

e Health and safety training

The percentage of employees trained
by gender and employee category

T2 @

EERSTER(H)

B3 /R R IZH

AEEBAEBILERN EOREMASBN TSR
5. TEBRESHERNHENIRBLRRIR -

EMRHEEREZNZILSR  WRRTEBER
BAUMNETER-

LT HABoEdIiRERDR

e HEXBRE Em

o  EERREWEMREMHERE
o BRREEEI

o AR

o RREHEZEIFI

MR EEERETNZIEET

Gender — male

Gender — female

Category — managerial
Category — general office
Category — frontline/operational

The average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category

Gender — male

Gender — female
Category — managerial
Category — general office

Category — frontline/operational

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

100.0%

MR — S 100.0%
MR — 100.0%
B —EEE 100.0%
R — —MRUB 100.0%
R — AR EE 100.0%

EHBIRESERE D  BEEERK

Z R TR E 1.078
M — S5H 1.211
MR — &K 0.907
Hhl —EERE 2.500
Bhl — — R 0.768
R — AR EE 1.217

83



Environmental, Social and Governance Report &% - #2RERRE

SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B4 Labour Standards

We comply with local employment regulations in all locations of
our operations, and do not engage in any forced or child labour.
To ensure we are legally compliant, we check applicants’ identity
including their age and eligibility for employment. Regular reviews
on our employment practices (including recruitment procedures)
are conducted to ensure we operate in a fair manner. Any case of
illegal, forced and child labour will be investigated and escalated
to the management where necessary.

B5 Supply Chain Management

The number of major suppliers, based on invoice amount, by
geographical region is indicated below:

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

TEMHER
AUSTRALIA (1) CHINA (6) DENMARK (2)
BN (1) i E (6) 2 (2)
HONG KONG (3) B ITALY (6) Il JAPAN (2)
%8 (3) = K7 (6) B A& (2)

Note: The definition of “major suppliers” refers to suppliers of products and/or sub-
contractors of services to which the Group incurred purchases exceeding
HK$1 million.

T2

ERREIERE)

B4 T XA

KRBT ELEMSEMNEREIRE YEISR
EARFHEIRETIHE - BRERFFTESLER
E BMERERBENSH  BEMGANFERRN
XER RN EHBEBEER (BERERR)ET
BT UBREFESET - AL  BHZEIRNETHN
BERBEZFAE  UHRAXBELREERE

B5 1R EGEEIE
RRESEMS  RUEBEINETEHEFHE N
T

[ FRANCE (1) Il GERMANY (6)
% Bl (1) = Bl (6)

SWITZERLAND (1) B UsSA (1)
i+ (1) XE (1)

M [ERMUER]NEREARSEEEFHNRBEBE
BEBINERMHERR RRBIEHE -
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B5 Supply Chain Management (cont’d)

As our operations connect us to a wide range of stakeholders along
the supply chain, we strive to make sure that sustainability
considerations have been embedded in our procurement practices.
Our Environmental and Social Policy is in place to facilitate
communication and align our sustainability expectations, including
legal compliance, anti-corruption policy, environmental protection,
workplace health and safety, employment practices, with our
suppliers and sub-contractors.

In selecting installation sub-contractors, we consider a range of
factors such as price, past performance, scale of the project,
technical competence, environmental records, workplace health
and safety standards.

We conduct appraisals to evaluate performance of suppliers and
sub-contractors. Factors assessed include production capacity,
technical capability, quality control systems, personnel quality and
sustainability performance. The results determine which suppliers
and sub-contractors deemed high risk and require further
consideration in future purchases. Appraisals are made at least
annually to ensure our supply chain stays aligned with our vision.
During the year, the Group was not aware that any key suppliers or
sub-contractors had significant actual or potential negative impact
on business ethics, environmental protection, human rights or
labour practices.

In view of the growing environmental awareness in Hong Kong,
we advocate the adoption of green features in product selection,
such as water flow control and FSC-certified materials. We give
precedence to those who have made strong environmental
commitments and those produce in close proximity to reduce
carbon emissions from transportation. We will continue our efforts
in bringing environmentally friendly products to customers.

Number of suppliers HEBHE
By region: Hong Kong ZEE D

Non-Hong Kong

T2 @

EEREIERE)

B5 (RIESEEHE ()
HRREEEKBERERMEREE INRZEHD
EEUHBE BMABOBRREBEFCZETESE
BREALE - BRMCHEREREEECE  (RiEHEMEE
BRI EEER IRHARMUNSNITHERRE
B BEAEAR  BEESK  RERE - LES
FFRERZE  EREER-

Rz ESOREE RAZESERS fluE
®OBAERE EERE  REESN  BREE T
ES PR R 2T -

EMEEERR S BB REETHMGE - Aherf
R=BELEERD  KiTeED BERHRESL  AB
BEERIUHERRRE FMEREERERATE
fftEEEIEEE  UAERRNRBHE—F
ZR - MEBFELET IR UBAREMOAEE
HEMNESRE - - AFE  FA5ERBERRE
AEEHERN) BEHBHRER RERE  AE
FETERFEANERREENEELE -

ENEENRRBATEH LR RMNEERERE
Em MAKRERHRERMNEEZESAEN
M RMEEZRERRELE DEEURER
MHEMNEER OB E@BRET AVEREER - &M
BEBEBE N REFPTRRRER °

203
D EE 37
BB 166
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B6 Product Responsibility

Our customers include contractors, property developers and
dealers. We recognise the uniqueness of requirements of each
customer, and offer a full range of products to satisfy customers’
needs.

The Group’s objective is to become one of the leading quality
suppliers of architectural builder’s hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value
of the Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting
products that commensurate with their lifestyles. We strive to
provide quality products and services to fulfil customers’ needs;
and to establish the brand and reputation of our Group for
customers’ recognition of our ability to serve them with two
fundamental qualities, “sincerity” and “quality”, which would
enable us to build customer loyalty, allowing us to establish strong
customer relationships for future businesses.

Product safety is our primary concern. The majority of our
products, in terms of purchase value, originate from Europe where
rigorous product testing regulations and requirements are in place.
Nevertheless, we carry out a number of measures to ensure product
safety, such as warranties and certificates from manufacturers, tests
according to customers’ requirements.

During the year, there was no product recall for safety and health
issues in relation to products sold by us; there was no substantiated
complaints received relating to the provision and the use of
products and services that have a significant impact on the Group.

Apart from safety, we also value performance ratings and feedback
from customers, of which feedback identifies areas of
improvement. We have established various communication
channels including corporate website and social media platforms
to facilitate and strengthen communication with our customers.
Feedback from customers is discussed and improvement will be
made where appropriate. Our labelling and advertising materials
are reviewed to ascertain their compliance with relevant marketing
communication practices.

T2

BERSIER(E)

B6 EmEE

BMEFEEAREDN WERREEREHES - RIR
PAEFSEETRANEE  TRE-ZIERUAI
EEMER -

REEFIRARHUBEEELT B8 BERE
RARMEIER - RMEREF 2B AHEER
DNAaBRFHE  BREAREE 2 mAEEE - BME
ERHEEEREBRBREEFEE EEFER
EMERIBRINRIER]I2RE  BBATEER
YmEEEREEREREF  SAKENATFE
VRERGR  HHRBRRELER -

ERZEERMANEEZRER HBEESEMS
AEENERIZEEN  ERHERAIERE
RER+7 &K - @E ML - RORMTDEEER
EmZE  fINBSLEEFANRERES REEF
HESRETRIR -

RAFE  EMAEENERBERSZE2NEER
BEmEEY SEEEREHKRERERMREM
HAEEREAZENEERABENRGR

BRTIEMZE  BRATEREFNRAFERER
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BEBRE  BREOEFAURMERERTE  UEE
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B6 Product Responsibility (cont'd)

We protect our proprietary position by registering trademarks in
markets of presence and in development. We respect others’
intellectual property rights and conduct trademark searches to
avoid infringement.

We comply with the latest Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance,
ensuring that the customer information we receive is only used for
its intended purposes. We regularly brief our staff, especially front-
line staff, to take great care in dealing with privacy matters. We did
not receive any substantiated complaints regarding breaches of
customer privacy or loss of customer data during the year.

B7 Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
integrity when doing business. We adopt the code of conduct (the
“Code of Conduct”) that complies with HKEX expectations on
corporate governance and the Independent Commission Against
Corruption’s anti-corruption policies. Our Code of Conduct is
outlined in the staff handbook and applies to every personnel of
the Group, including its directors and staff at all levels.

Sub-contract works are made in accordance with the standard
procedure of the Group. Once having received the quotations from
potential contractors, we evaluate each based on a range of factors
such as: price, past performance, scale of the project, technical
competence, environmental records, workplace health and safety
standards. Decisions on sub-contract appointments are reviewed
and endorsed by the management of the Group.

The Group has a whistle-blowing mechanism for staff members
and business partners to report any potential bribery or other
misconduct behaviours. All cases are treated with strict confidence.
The Managing Director is responsible to implement such
mechanism while the Audit Committee is responsible to review.

The Code of Conduct and anti-bribery training is included in the
induction programme of all staff members. Our conditions of
employment require compliance with the Code of Conduct.
Additionally, anti-corruption training materials were circulated to
the Board of Directors during the year.

There was no legal case of corruption brought against our Group
or its staff members during the year.

T2 @

EEREIER (&)

B6 E@EF (&)
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FARET)ERENEEAARELEBSE - RAF
B BATEEECABRRELEFLABRELRT
FEHNEERBEMNIRG

B RES

AEBRAUBSHHEEELE T o HAIRMN
HEeBEBERGFHCEXERPERERABNRE
SSBORMIRTER(TRFER D - RMMIRFER
EREIFMGMS  WEARAEENESNET &
FEHESNEHKET -

DPEIRDBRBEFAEENREERFEL  SEEE
Ao EENHRE AARBEZREZEESLIBH
EITRAL - B0 B4 - BERRE  BERE - 5l
BEh - BRRRE - TEESMEREZ2RE - 78F
BHRENEAEBHEEEEMALAT -

AEBEREERES HETNEHXBHERREM
BENBRIEMIETS IERFEZEBER
7o EBRKEATEERE-HE  MBEAZESA
EEG

THAEARREREICHAREE THAREI
T8 - RMNERREEREFITRER - 5 R
REE  TAESEDBRRETEIME -

RAFE  UEHFHAKELHS THEITERNR

e
A ©

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

87



Environmental, Social and Governance Report &% - #2RERRE

SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B8 Community Investment

The Group is committed to be an active participant in the local
community wherever it operates. Our approach is to primarily
focus on the elderly, children and the underprivileged, and to give
support to environmental protection. Our volunteering programmes
continued to be limited due to the pandemic and subsequent social
distancing measures, yet we managed to visit and distribute food to
the elderly, fund a scholarship and clean shorelines during the
year.

We encourage employees to do the same to contribute to their
neighbourhood. A care to the society will eventually benefit our
future generations.

T2

BRERSIER(E)

B3 ERE
FEEFNEBBMALEEREHZHE - ML
METERBIEA  RERBFZHE  IHRRER
ETUXE - HAEMNBR I IEERRERE
BROERERERMZERS - BEMAREREF
ERARESXERY)  EPREBSWEFRER -

EMSMET —EEE  AMELH 00 - BRHE
BRREREMT K-

Vespa Scholarship in Interior Design at HKUSPACE
EEBABRERESBR Vespa EARFTRES

USPACE - o UsPacE E 4

AWARD PRESENTATION CEREMONY MM 813 AWARD PRESENTATION CEREMONY i $% 51 i
12 November 2021 12 Novembar 2021
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Clean Shorelines
EREF
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FEEDBACK TO THIS REPORT

We welcome comments and suggestions regarding our
environmental and social performance for continuous
improvement. Stakeholders may at any time send their written
enquiries and concerns to the ESG Representative of the Company
at its Head Office as follows:

ESG Representative

16th-18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

esg@ebon.com.hk

HERENER

EMBORBNERBERERERMERER R
HERRER FOETHRREIKRE-EEMMBE
RFFEEICEBRTARABPSBR2ATRE - 4
BRERRK  WUWT :

RIE HERERAE

8

SRR B TEE 33 5%
F-EERE
16-18#&

esg@ebon.com.hk
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INDEX &

Aspects, General Disclosures Compliance Reference
and KPIs Description level (page)
EBE - —REER
BREXER Eipus BHKF 2Z (AR
Subject Area A — Environment
TEHEA—RE
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT : BB
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 73
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—RIME BHERRBREREHR  AARIHBNEES BEEREEEEVNELSH : e 73
@ HBE R
b)  ETFHBRTABEAZENEBEERROINEY -
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Comply 74
BREMIERAL PR LR R AR R BE B - By 74
KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in Comply 74
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity.
BRAMERAL2 HE(EEDMEREE(BE) WREREBHNE (UMHE) R (WER)RE - ey 74
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity. Explain 74
BENRIERAL3 FEEEEERNAE (UINEE) R (ER) BE - fRiE 74
KPI'AT.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Comply 74
intensity.
BEREMIERAL4 FEAEZERERYESE UNFE) R (MEBR)EE - By 74
KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Comply 73
BREMERAIS HRFTET LV BE N E B B R AERE L B SIS R - EAS Y 73
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a Comply 74
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
BRENRIERALG WAEEAERETERYNG L  RERAT ZHRERRERBERELE eiS) 74
RFTEREN YD ER
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2 : BRER
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw Comply 75
materials.
—RIRE BRERAER (BERR - KREMEMR) HBER - e 75
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in Comply 76
total (kWh in "000s) and intensity.
BREMIERA2.1 REDBSNEER SHEEER(EE - f5Uh) BFE UTETREE) eAS Y 76
REE -
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Comply 76
BASEERNIERA2.2 BITKBREBE - BsF 76
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Comply 75
BASEEMIEIRA23 WP PRET M VRS IR R B R R RIERE L B RIS - &7 75
KPI' A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, Comply 76
water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
BREMERA24 HMSREEAKR LRI B EARIRE MR LN AR B ERAEREL eAS 76
BARFTERENAY S B o
KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, Comply 76
with reference to per unit produced.
BEREMIERA2S HERAAEEMHNAE UEE) R (NER) BEEBUGSE - FEAS Y 76
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INDEX (CONT'D)

Aspects, General Disclosures

and KPIs
BE —REER
FHRERER

\W
0

5| @)

Description

b

o e

Compliance

level

ARKT

(page)

JIR K 17 2

Reference

2% (HR)

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and Comply 77
natural resources.

—RiNE HEBITAHRERARERELEALENBR - B 77

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural Comply 77
resources and the actions taken to manage them.

BSRAERIER A3 HREBFHHRERARERNEATERCRNERARZENTE - EF 77

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues Comply 78
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—RINE B R EHORR TREHRTAEEYENEARIREESENECE - EF 78

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and Comply 78-79
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

BRERIER A4 HREERATHEEHRTAEERENEARGRAREE - RELHTH - EF 78-79

General Disclosure Information on: Comply 79-80
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
—RIKE ERHMWREE  BEREA  THERY - BREY - FERE - St RIER B 79-80
IR EMEBRERE
@ HBE R
(b) BEBFHBTABEAFENEBEERSRS
AR -
KPI'B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-time), age Comply 80-81
group and geographical region.
BRENIEEB A RIER - EREEE (WERHFR) FRANRGERINESLY - g 80-81
KPI'B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Comply 81
B ENIEEB1 2 RS - FRANRIEES D NESRAE - B 81
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INDEX (CONT'D) #5| @)

Aspects, General Disclosures Compliance Reference
and KPIs Description level (page)
EE - —REER
BRENER i BHKF 2% (HR)
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2 : @EHEZE
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 82
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
—RIKE AFERHZETFRERREBERESHAHMELREN Bsr 82
@ BER R
b)  EIFEBRTABERZENEREEERRH
HER -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years Comply 82
including the reporting year.
BREANIEEB2.1 BE=ZF (BRERFE)SFRITHHABKRIE - eAS 82
KPI'B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Comply 82
BRERIEEBR2.2 ATBEATERH - ey 82
KPI'B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they Comply 82
are implemented and monitored.
BREMIERB23 MR FT RNV R R R 2 2 e - URIBBERITRERSE - e 82
Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EEB3 : BRERE
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at Comply 83
work. Description of training activities.
—RIRE BERAEEET THEREN DR R IREENECR - #lEE - BsF 83
KPI'B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. Comply 83
senior management, middle management).
BREANIEEB3 EURIRESER (MESREEE - PREER) ASNZIEETDLL - FeAS Y 83
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee Comply 83
category.
BASRERIEEB3.2 ZEURIREEENE D  BEREESTRIZIN PTG - BF 83
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : 3 T8
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 84
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—RIRE BEERILE TSRIEHIE TH fEiS) 84
@ BE R
(b) BIHBTABEAYENREEERRS
HEH -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and Comply 84
forced labour.
BREMIER B4 BT REES N ERABRETIRBHEIZE T - By 84
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Comply 84
BERENIEEB42 M7 B R E R BN KRB BE R AT ERER R 58 o FEAS Y 84
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INDEX (CONT'D) #5| |

Aspects, General Disclosures Compliance Reference
and KPIs Description level (page)
EBE - —REER
RRERER g ARKF 2Z(ER)
Operating Practices
EEE
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EmEB5 : HEEERE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Comply 84-85
—RIRE ERMEBNRERLERBBE B=F 84-85
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Comply 84
BRAMIEEBS LB E D NHEEEHE o B=F 84
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where Comply 85
the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
B EIEEB5.2 WA ANERNES  BENTAREMNNHERRE - URARHT e 85
REZEGE -
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the Comply 85
supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
B ANIEEB5.3 AR R EESERANRERESRRMNES - URBEHTRER ey 85
ke
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and Comply 85
services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
BRANIEEBS.4 HRERBHEEREES ARRERRBBENES  URBEEATRERS B=F 85
P
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EMEE
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 86
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
—RIKE FEARHUERNBRENRERLZE  BS BERLBEEUREREEN eSS 86
@ HBE R
b)  EFEHRTABERZENEBEEERSRS
&R -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and Comply 86
health reasons.
BRAMIEEB6.1 EENCEXERBHTEZ2HERREHMARKNEDLL - B=F 86
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are Comply 86
dealt with.
RS EIEE B6.2 BN E M R R IR LUK 50k o By 86
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property Comply 87
rights.
BRANIEREB6.3 Hh B A 5 % AR PR B E AR ARV IE B - B=F 87
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Comply 86
BRANIEEB6.4 HEEREBERERBKRER B=F 86
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are Comply 87
implemented and monitored.
B ENIEEB6.S RHOHBEERREBRABEE  UARBBITRERS X - B 87
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EE - —REER
BRENER

#5l| @)

Description

iz

Compliance
level

SRKFE

Reference
(page)

2E(HER)

General Disclosure Information on: Comply 87
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—RIRE HEERTILERRE - B - MFFRIAREN B 87
@ BER
b) EBIFEBRTABEAZENEEERERRS
R o
KPI'B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Comply 87
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RS EIER BT A RERPAHBRTAREESREYEEENETHRARM O BE RFDER - B3 87
KPI'B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they Comply 87
are implemented and monitored.
BRI RIEE BT 2 BB EIEE R R BEF - UREBATRERERE - B 87
KPI'B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. Comply 87
RS RIEEBY.3 HREESKE TRENRETEI - B 87
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities Comply 88
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
—RIRE BRUMESERTREEMELEREENRREEREDSZBEENEMN B 88
BUR o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Comply 88
BREMIERBS. EE RS - e 88
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Comply 88
B AERUER BS.2 HEIHEFBAER E<F 88
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VERIFICATION STATEMENT

Scope and Objective

Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (“HKQAA”) has been
engaged by the E.Bon Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 599)
(“E.Bon”) to undertake an independent verification of its
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“the Report”). The
Report stated the economic, environmental and social performance
of E.Bon in the period of Tst April 2021 to 31st March 2022 for its
major operation in Hong Kong.

The aim of this verification is to provide a reasonable assurance on
the reliability of the report content. The Report has been prepared
in accordance with the Appendix 27 “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Guide”) of the Main Board
Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK”").

Level of Assurance and Methodology

The process applied in this verification was based on the
International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised),
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board. Our evidence gathering process was
designed to obtain a reasonable level of assurance as set out in the
standard for the purpose of devising the verification conclusion.
The extent of this verification process covered the criteria set in the
ESG Guide of the SEHK.

The verification process included verifying information relevant to
reporting and management procedures, including stakeholder
engagement methods and result, and materiality assessment
processes. In addition, system and process for collecting, collating
and reporting sustainability performance data were verified. Raw
data and supporting evidence of the selected representative
samples were also thoroughly examined during the verification
process.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report &% - #2RERRE

VERIFICATION STATEMENT (conT'D)

Independence

E. Bon is responsible for the collection and presentation of the
information presented. HKQAA does not involve in calculating,
compiling, or in the development of the Report. Our verification
activities are independent from E.Bon. There was no relationship
between HKQAA and E.Bon that would affect the independence of
HKQAA for providing the verification service.

Conclusion
Based on the verification results, HKQAA has obtained reasonable
assurance and is in the opinion that:

e Report has been prepared in accordance with the ESG Guide
of the SEHK:

e The Report illustrates the sustainability performance of E.Bon
in a clear, comparable and timely manner; and

e The data and information disclosed in the Report are reliable
and complete.

Nothing has come to HKQAA attention that the selected
sustainability performance information and data contained in the
Report has not been prepared and presented fairly and honestly, in
material aspects, in accordance with the verification criteria. In
conclusion, the Report reflects truthfully the sustainability
commitments, policies and performance of E.Bon, and discloses
transparently their sustainability performance that is commensurate
with their sustainability context and materiality.

Signed on behalf of Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

Meico Cheong
Senior General Manager, Innovation Business
27 June 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report M % %60 &

_E
pwc

To the Members of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set
out on pages 107 to 189, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2022;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report X % ¥k &

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Provision for inventory obsolescence

e Provision for impairment of trade and retention receivables
and contract assets
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Provision for inventory obsolescence

Refer to notes 2.11, 4.1 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements for the disclosures of the related accounting policies,
judgements and estimates

As at 31 March 2022, the Group held net inventories of
approximately HK$115 million after provision of obsolescence.

Management assessed the provision at each period ended for
obsolete or slow-moving inventories. In determining the amount of
allowance required for obsolete and slow-moving inventories,
management evaluates the ageing of inventories, their historical
and estimated future sales pattern and other factors and compares
the carrying value of inventories to their estimated net realisable
value.

The identification of inventory obsolescence and determination of
estimated net realisable value require the use of significant
judgement and estimates, including their nature, ageing, latest
selling price, and expectation of future sales orders. The estimates
are subject to uncertainty of market trends, customer demands and
fashion trends.

We focused on this area because of the significance of the gross
inventory balance to the consolidated financial statements and the
estimation and judgement involved in determining the provision
for inventory obsolescence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

We understood and evaluated the key controls by which
management reviews on inventory provision including procedures
on periodic review of obsolete and aged inventory and assessment
on provision for inventory and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors. We validated the key
controls that the Group has implemented to estimate the loss
allowance for inventory provision.

We understood and assessed the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the assumptions adopted in the provision policy
and basis of identification of the obsolete and slow-moving
inventories by referencing to their ageing, historical and subsequent
sales patterns and estimated future sales.

We tested, on a sample basis, of the accuracy of the ageing report
of inventory against goods receipt notes.

We evaluated and tested, on a sample basis, the historical sales
records of inventories against sales invoices, goods delivery notes
and purchase orders from customers and the estimated future sales
against secured orders.

We also assessed the estimated net realisable value by comparing
the estimated selling price and sales quantity of inventories with
the corresponding post year-end sales data.

We considered these assumptions made by management were
supportable by available evidence appropriate based on the
procedures performed above.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Provision for impairment of trade and retention receivables and
contract assets

Refer to notes 2.8 and 4.2 to the consolidated financial statements
for the disclosures of the related accounting policies, judgements
and estimates.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had trade and retention
receivables of approximately HK$127 million and contract assets
of approximately HK$4 million.

Management assesses the provision for impairment of trade and
retention receivables and contract assets based on the lifetime
expected credit losses. These receivables are grouped by shared
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery, whenever appropriate. The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on historical credit losses experience and credit
profile of the customers and are adjusted to reflect the effects of
current conditions as well as forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables. Receivables relating to customers with
known financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection are
assessed individually for provision for impairment.

We focused on this area due to the significance of the trade and
retention receivables and contract assets to the consolidated
financial statements and the estimation and judgement involved in
determining the expected credit losses allowance of these
receivables.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

We understood, evaluated the key control procedures performed
by which management assessed the expected credit losses,
including its procedures on periodic review of aged receivables
and assessment on expected credit losses allowance of these
receivables and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors. We validated the key controls that the
Group has implemented to estimate the loss allowance for
impairment of trade and retention receivables and contract assets.

We evaluated the significant judgements and assumptions involved
in the expected credit losses measurement model, including
management’s assessment of credit risks of the debtors, considering
their credit profiles, historical repayment patterns, publicly
available information of these debtors, and forward-looking factors
such as market conditions and economic growth, and assessed the
reasonableness of the judgements and assumptions adopted.

We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing report of
trade and retention receivables by tracing to invoices.

We performed recalculation of the ECL model to assess the
mathematical accuracy.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered the estimation
and judgement made by management in determining the expected
credit losses allowance of trade and retention receivables and
contract assets were supportable by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT’D)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT’D)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 14 July 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #& &M@ R &

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE-Z-=—FZA=+-HLFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other (losses)/gains, net

Net impairment losses on financial
and contract assets

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs, net

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange gains on translation
of financial statements of

foreign operations

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Gains on revaluation of properties held

for own use
Tax effect relating to revaluation of
properties held for own use
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2022 2021

—EF —E-—F

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M= FTHET FHET
5 494,592 422,454
9 (311,096) (263,869)
183,496 158,585

6 2,005 3,711
7 (1,361) 3,587
21 (94) (139)
9 (94,699) (81,956)
9 (70,189) (67,047)
19,158 16,741

161 178
(3,737) (4,324)
10 (3,576) (4,146)
15,582 12,595
13 (3,688) (1,826)
11,894 10,769

294 1,000

16 3,721 6,338
26 (614) (1,046)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #HZE=-Z-—F=A=+-HLFE

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Earnings per share
(expressed in HK cents per share)
— Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 114 to 189 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Notes
MY EE
FEHM2EWKE  BREZ
AATFEEERGEESRMA
WiRdEEE
BRER (UAZRBWAEN)
— BEARREHE 15

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22

SEEERER
2022 2021
—EBCF —E-—5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
3,401 6,292
15,295 17,061

1.98 cents &1l

1.79 cents &1l

FI4Z 189 BT ARSERETHERER -



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #R& B #&ARR %

As at 31 March 2022 R=ZE=Z=Z&#=A=+-H

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FfaE FERT Fi&x
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ BERRE 16 269,162 245,891
Right-of-use assets ERESE 17 45,444 65,141
Investment properties REME 18 - 32,300
Deferred income tax assets EILFERESE 26 5,873 7,019
Retention and other receivables FE U 1R B8 2 R E b e Uk 2k 21 6,003 5,874
326,482 356,225
Current assets ENEE
Inventories Fea s 20 115,420 142,451
Trade, retention and other receivables FEURBRESR - FEWIREB R K
H bR 21 148,649 93,109
Contract assets BREE 21 4,338 4,325
Current income tax recoverable AT Uk [B] Z< B Fr 8 %4 3,136 3,604
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRESZEY 22 104,199 102,964
375,742 346,453
Total assets BMEE 702,224 702,678
EQUITY 3
Equity attributable to equity FATMEEEGES
holders of the Company
Share capital IR 27 60,060 60,060
Reserves i 28 410,461 401,172
Total equity HiER 470,521 461,232

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #&#& ##&AR5% &

As at 31 March 2022 R=ZZE=Z=Z&#£=A=+-H

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Other provision
Lease liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Lease liabilities
Borrowings
Current income tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

afE

FRBEME
Hib#E
HESE
ELEFREHEE

RBEE
BRI E AL BT
BHEE
fTEEmas
HESE

EEA

FEFFEHEE

waE

HERRAE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 107 to 189 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 14 July 2022 and were

signed on its behalf.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
IR
Director

EF

The notes on pages 114 to 189 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

2022 2021

—E-_—F —E-—5F

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MtaE FET FET
23 5,000 3,800
17 22,094 41,920
26 18,900 19,276
45,994 64,996

23 34,386 35,975
23 75,337 42,248
25 935 851
17 27,902 28,477
24 42,083 66,574
5,066 2,325

185,709 176,450

231,703 241,446

702,224 702,678

FI07E189ENGEUBRERCLESTGNR -
“CELATHMBEHE  YHTIHESRRES -

TSE Sun Po, Tony
Bk

Director

EFE

FI4Z 189 BT ARSERETHERER -

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 4&#Ea% 8%

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE-Z-=—FZA=+-HLFE

Z

Share Share Revaluation ~ Merger  Capital ~ Exchange  Statutory  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  earnings Total
Bx ROEE EftRk AHRE ErRE EXRE IERE REEN a7
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér TEn TEx TEx TEx TEx  TEx  TEn  TEx

At 1 April 2020 R-ZE-E£NAF-H 60,060 1,200 136,108 6,979 2,89 (1,112) 2103 241942 450,177
Profit for the year EERF - - - - - - - 10769 10769
Other comprehensive income b2 ENE
Exchange loss on translation of financial ~ AEENERHNRERERER

statements of foreign operations - - - - - 1,000 - - 1,000
Gains on revaluation of properties RIEBRMRERIE

held for own use - - 6,338 - - - - - 6,338
Tax effect relating to revaluation of REERBRNE HERE

properties held for own use - - (1,046) - - - - - (1,046)
Total comprehensive income 2ERGEE - - 5,292 - - 1,000 - 10769 17,061
Dividends (Note 14(a)) RS (&t 14@) - - - - - - - (6006) (6,006
Appropriation to statutory reserve EEREDE (FE26)

(Note 28) - - - - - - 2 (22) -
Transactions with owners BfEEZRS - - - - - - 0 (6,028) (6,006
At 31 March 2021 R-B--£Zf=t+-H 60,060 1,201 141,400 6,979 2,896 (112) 2,125 246,683 461,232

The notes on pages 114 to 189 are an integral part of these #114Z189EHEBZEHFAUBRE—HD -
consolidated financial statements.

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R
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A RE S E)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #&&=n%

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #HZE=-Z-—F=A=+-HLFE

At1 April 2021 H-8--£mA-A
Profit for the year EERR
Other comprehensive income Eft2EkKE

Exchange gain on translation of financial - #EENEREHRE 2 ERME
statements of foreign operations

Gains on revaluation of properties BlEBRNRES A
held for own use

Tax effect relating to revaluation of BREMBRNELHERE
properties held for own use

Total comprehensive income PEKEAE

Dividends (Note 14(a)) RE (Wi 14)

Appropriation to statutory reserve EEREIE (HE20)
(Note 28)

Transactions with owners HEEZRS

At 31 March 2022 RZB-ZZ§=F=1-A

Z

=

Share Share Revalaion ~ Merger ~ Capital  Exchange  Statutory  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve earnings Total
Rkx RGEE ERRE SUHRE E4RE ENRGE IERE REER CEl
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér TEx T#Ez TEx TEx TEz TEx TR TEn
60,060 1,201 141,400 6,979 2,896 (112) 2,125 246,683 461,232
- - - - - - - 11,894 11,894
- - - - - 294 - - 294
- -3 - - - - B VA
- - (614) - - - - - (614)
- - 3,107 - - 294 - 11,894 15,295
i} i R _ - - - (6006 (6006
- - - - - - 55 (55) -
- - - - - - 55 (6,061) (6,000
60,060 1,201 144,507 6,979 2,896 182 2,180 252516 470,521

The notes on pages 114 to 189 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FI4Z 189 BT AZSERETHEREK —ID °

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &R E&RE

For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE=ZE==F=

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated
from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
(Payment for settlement)/proceed

from disposal of forward contracts
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Sales proceeds of property,

plant and equipment
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings

Interest paid on bank borrowings
Principal elements of lease payments
Interest paid on leases

Proceeds of trust receipt loans
Repayment of trust receipt loans
Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Exchange gains on cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

The notes on pages 114 to 189 are an
consolidated financial statements.

B=+—HLEE

Notes
Fff &

REEBH2RERE
REEE RS 29(a)
SFEH

RETHELFRE

REFHZRERE

HEEHEHNZ
(REUIRR),FriER0R

BEYWE  BERRE

3 BERRBHE

FRSFRIE 29(b)
[=L&=)

REFHAFRE

METHZRERE

BT FR 29(c)
BEER 29(c)
SHRITENRFE

BENRTEHD 29(c)
ENEERNE 29(c)
FEEBEES Zﬁ% 29(c)
FERBBERZER 29(c)
2HRE

BMEFBAAFRE
RERRESEYFEM

FORERREEEY

RERBSEEMEL WS

FRAERREEEY
22

2022 2021
—EF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
72,932 97,247
(394) (8,388)
72,538 88,859
(2,070) 588
(6,321) (37,393)
37 -

161 178
(8,193) (36,627)
- 15,000
(3,872) (20,666)
(1,385) (1,374)
(28,907) (31,498)
(2,351) (2,950)
40,127 96,830
(60,746) (82,296)
(6,006) (6,006)
(63,140) (32,960)
1,205 19,272
102,964 83,434
30 258
104,199 102,964

integral part of these #114E189EHEAZZFRA

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R
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GENERAL INFORMATION

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business is 16th—18th Floors, First
Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong. Its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
[ts subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing,
wholesale, retail and installation of architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture and
provision of interior design services, project and contract
management in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of E. Bon Holdings
Limited have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings held for own
use, investment properties and derivative financial
instruments, which are carried at fair values.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt

Z

—REHR

BBTERERABRTARQAF]) AREEHRE
HMRL2EREMELT  HiXMiiEEbit
% Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands R E X & it B A H BN HE2EE
BEE—FERE16ZE 181 - HERPREB
BERSBRAT (B 2EMm LT o

FABRNETREBAREER - AWEQTE
EREBRDPEARANBE(HE D REE
A #t3#% ZERZEEERS - #8 BHE
REBEREM  URREZERRFRE HER
BRERE -

BREEHBI  ZEGSUBRERUBTES -

TEETBRME

RAEZEGAVBRRARAEIEZSH B
PIINT - BREBHBAI  REBRERRAA 2/
FEEHMEA -

2.1 mEEE
TBPTEREBRATZGETHERRERTD
REMBEABREVERSEN(ESR
ISR E 2R ) RE B D AHRAI (5B 622
B)NIEBERERH - NS M HERRM
BEEIRAEREIFER  LEMISIES
AEETHEREF REVERITES
MIE-E-ELAZ  REQAARET
R ©
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont'd)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

(@ The following new standards and amendments to
standards are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2021:

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Benchmark Reform
— Phase 1
(amendments)

HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions
(amendments)

Except for HKFRS 16, the adoption of the above
new standards and amendments to standards did
not have any significant financial impact on these
consolidated financial statements.

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

FESHBRUE @

2.1

mEBEE (F)

RIBFBUBRELEUFERGS KR
RAEMAETEEG A TRER
BEEAAREESTBERRTRAFE -
BREEFERERN  RERRRM
AHESUBRRMEBERNZEE -

RHIEE 4IRS -
(@) TTHIBIEER R ERIAMERT AT

REBZ-FHNAB—-HR &R
2 BEEERBRRM

BAGTREASE0% . FREEYE
BRYBHREER —5-K&
FTRRBBUY (BEIE)
HEZRFE R

CHEN
BBRBREER 2019 BHRFES
%163 miEBHS

RREFTF)

BREBUBHREENE 16585
PrRAN £l 22 B K 2E B USR] AN
FEEMBHRIBAMERGH

2245
o °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cONT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not

Z

FESHBERME @)

2.1

mMBLE X ()

(b) CHEHGER-ZE-_-—-F—HF—A%
BB BEE M ARERBN
EIBRRM o FER - ERIRZE

effective for the financial year beginning on or after
1 January 2021 and have not been early adopted:

Accounting Guideline 5

BEHESIE 5%
Annual Improvements Project

FENEERR

Amendment to HKFRS 3
BAMKREERE 3BT
Amendment to HKAS 16
EEETERE 1655 R
Amendment to HKAS 37

BEBETERIE 7 RIETA
Amendment to HKAS 1

BRETENE 1 FBITA
HKFRS 17
BERBUBRELERNE 175
HK Int 5 (2020)

BERRBESR(ZERF)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

BEREENS 1 EREBTHK
REENERREE 2%

HKAS 8
BEBEFERE
HKAS 12

BERETENE 2R
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

EEMBREENE 105K
BHRETERE 285

HUSRTAS

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
(amendments)

FIREENE — R (BFTA)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
(amendments)

BRMEREN S NEFE_T_ZFFEYE
(EFTA)

Definition of a Business (amendments)

ER TR (BIIK)

Property, Plant and Equipment (amendments)

ME - BERSRE (BFTA)

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets (amendments)

B IREERIAEE (BFTA)

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current (amendments)

HEEI BARBIIERE EFTAR)

Insurance Contracts

RBEH

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause (HK Int 5 (2020))

BERBESY (CEE2F)UKBRNES
— ERAHEETEREREEGINERER
NP B (BEARBESH(ZE2EF))

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (amendments)

S BERE (BT A)

Definition of Accounting Estimates (amendments)
G EETER (BRI AK)
Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities
Arising from a Single Transaction (amendments)
BE-RSEENEEEREEHEBNELERE (BFIA)
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture (amendments)
REERAEBE N RN GELECENEELE
HEE (BETR)

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22

Effective for
annual periods
beginning

on or after
RTHIBH®
P3P
FERBEXR

1 January 2022

“E--%-A-H
1 January 2022

ZE--5-f-H

1 January 2022
—EB-Zf-A—A
1 January 2022
—B--f#-A—A
1 January 2022

—E-"F—-—H—H
1 January 2023

—E-=%-8-H
1 January 2023
—ZE-=%-f-H
1 January 2023

—EZ=F-A—H

1 January 2023
—E-=F—-A—H
1 January 2023

—E-_=%—-HA—H
1 January 2023

—E-=%—-A—H
To be determined
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont'd)

b)

Management is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of the above new
standards, interpretation and amendments to
standards but is not yet in a position to state
whether they will result in substantial changes to
the Group’s significant accounting policies and the
presentation of its financial statements.

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.

2

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

FESHBRUE @

2.1

2.2

mEBEE (F)

(b) EEEIEELMHAEL - RER
R ZAERT AN E » HREERR
RS EETEHAEEE
BEETHRRMBHEREN AN
BEREE -

MEAT

2.2.1 455K E
MEBARAREEHEREFEGIE
ZER(BELZBER) - EXKE
FERSHEER CEBMAERGRE
EEUZER; REENERHE
REAEIMFYEZERR K&
EEAEHIEEE - B AR BIES
BERZAEEEZEAZEAR 1
BRIEEHEBTBREAKR-

SERRAEZRS - FHEEE

o REBRBETTUHE - 1A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.2 Subsidiaries (cont'd)
2.2.2Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors that make
strategic decisions.

24

Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which
is the Company’s functional and the Group's
presentation currency.

2

Z

FESHBERME @)

2.2

2.3

2.4
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (cont'd)
(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
within “Other (losses)/gains, net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

FESHBRUE @

2.4 HNEBRE(R)
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(c)

X G RiEw
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings are stated at revalued
amount. Property, plant and equipment, other than
leasehold land and buildings, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their
revalued amount, being the revaluation value at the date
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does
not differ significantly from that which would be
determined using revaluation values at the reporting
date.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings is credited to the
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same assets previously
recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is
credited to the profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an
expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any,
on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

2

Z

FESHBERME @)

2.5
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land
and buildings

Over the shorter of unexpired
term of lease or 50 years

Over the shorter of lease
terms or 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures 20%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’” useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amounts and
are recognised in the profit or loss. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained earnings as a
movement in reserve.

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
profit or loss within “Other (losses)/gains, net”.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

2.8.1Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured at amortised cost; and

e those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss).

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.8 Financial assets (cont'd)
2.8.2Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

2.8.3Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the group
classifies its debt instruments:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.8 Financial assets (cont’d)
2.8.3Measurement (cont’d)
Debt instruments (cont’d)

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The
Group’s financial assets carried at amortised
cost comprise “trade and retention
receivables”, “deposits and other receivables”
and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”)

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.8 Financial assets (cont’d)
2.8.3Measurement (cont’d)

Debt instruments (cont'd)

— FVPL
Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in “Other (losses)/gain, net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

2.8.4Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade and retention receivables and contract
assets, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables. Details on how the
Group determines the expected credit losses are set
out in Note 3.1(c).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.9

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

2.11

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The gain or
loss relating to the fair value re-measurement is
recognised immediately in the profit or loss within
“Other (losses)/gains, net”.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.12 Trade, retention and other receivables

Trade and retention receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade,
retention and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade, retention and other receivables are recognised
initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held
at call with banks.

2.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

2.17 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax 2.18 AERIEEFEH

The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(@ Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. The group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or
the expected value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax
is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (cont’d)

b)

Deferred income tax (cont’d)

The deferred income tax liability in relation to
investment property that is measured at fair value is
determined assuming the property will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and where the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

2

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

FESHBRUE @

2,18 AHIRIEZLEFEH (&)

(b)

EA PS5 ()
BAREFBERREMFENIEL
FSHABIREBMESITNHE
R E YRR MEE

EEFFEHREEERRTREAARR
ERBEHAEEGFEERRE

BISHER o

EEFREHAEREEREHRE
ERRERRIEBOHREN T
MER(HBADTEHERD A
B MZE=RARTEEIRR
M) /E HHERD o

fisl T2 AT ORI HI AT O RERIAS AR
BN EEEREERE  RMEL
BIR AR EAE] — B AR AR - Al
AHEEFEHEEREEKE -
sl B B8 78 W K K 08 B AT S SHAE R
BEERFEREEFEIERFEE
EENRBHEAER  AABHEER
EREFAAERH -

R RIEERIRN B8 PR -
BEREM2ERSERE ENES
BRWBEB R - HUHBERT - B
BERDBIREfEEKEREER
R PR -

129



130

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.19 Employee benefits

(@

b)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long
service payments to its employees upon the
termination of their employment or retirement
when the employee fulfils certain circumstances
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is
the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.20 Provisions

2.21

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance
cost.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts and returns. The Group recognises revenue
when goods are transferred or services are rendered to
the customer.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for the services that the Group has transferred
to a customer. In addition, incremental costs incurred to
obtain a new contract, if recoverable, are capitalised as
contract assets and subsequently amortised when the
related revenue is recognised. A contract liability is the
Group’s obligation to render the services to a customer
for which the Group has received consideration from
the customer. A contract liability is recognised by the
Group when the customer pays consideration in
advance before the Group satisfy the performance
obligation to the customer.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.21 Revenue recognition (cont'd)

(@

(b)

(©

(d)

Sales of goods

The Group sells architectural builders” hardware,
bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in the
wholesale and retail market. Revenue from sales of
goods is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods are delivered to
the customer.

Contract revenue

The Group engages in importing, selling and
installation of kitchen collections, and other
construction and decoration works to contractors
and property developers. Revenue from the
services rendered by the Group is recognised over
time as the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset or work in progress that the
customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The Group has applied the output
method in recognising the revenue from
construction contracts over time. The progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation of construction contracts is measured
with reference to either surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract work.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is
recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Finance income

Finance income is recognised using the effective
interest method to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTBERBEw@
POLICIES (cONT'D)
2.22 Leases 222 HE
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a HERHEEEAHAKREEAERRE
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased AREAEEEREREE -

asset is available for use by the group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single lease
component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

— fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

— variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date

— amounts expected to be payable by the group
under residual value guarantees

— the exercise price of a purchase option if the group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

— payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the group exercising that
option.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.22 Leases (cont’d)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the group:

— where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

— makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

— the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

— any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

— any initial direct costs, and

—  restoration costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.22 Leases (cont’d)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. While
the group revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by
the group.

Payments associated with short-term leases are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months.

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (Note 18). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position based on
their nature. The group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as
a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 —
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions retrospectively from
1 April 2020. The amendment provides an optional
practical expedient allowing lessees to elect not to
assess whether a rent concession related to COVID-19 is
a lease modification. Lessees adopting this election may
account for qualifying rent concessions in the same way
as they would if they were not lease modifications.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.22 Leases (cont’d)

The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and only if all of the following conditions are
met:

a. the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

b. any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and

c. there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

The Group has early adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16
— COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021, which extended the practical expedient to lease
payments that were due on or before 30 June 2022.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all
qualifying COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions.

2.23 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.25 Earnings per share

(@ Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

(b)

the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@

b)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from borrowings and interest-bearing bank
deposits. Interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Interest-bearing financial assets/
liabilities at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2022, if the interest rate had
increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year and retained earnings would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$259,000 (2021:
HK$152,000). The 50 basis point increase/decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the sales transactions settled in Hong Kong
dollars. However, foreign currencies are required
to settle the Group’s purchases from overseas
suppliers.

To manage their foreign exchange risk arising from
certain future commercial transactions and
recognised liabilities, entities in the Group use
forward contracts, transacted with external
financial institutions. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognised
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3 UBEREE®

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d) 3.1 BXEBEEE)
(b) Foreign currency risk (cont’d) b) IMNEREEE (1E)

(c)

At 31 March 2022, if the EURO (“EUR”) had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the HKD
with all other variables held constant, profit for the
year would have changed as follows. The changes
are mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of EUR denominated
cash and bank deposits, trade payables and
borrowings.

Post-tax profit (decrease)/increase ~ EEZEHB U T E -

when EUR BRBLRIER ORl2), 18 b0
— strengthened by 5% — HE5%
— weakened by 5% —RfE5%
Credit risk ©

(i)  Risk management
The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to cash and cash equivalents,
trade, retention and other receivables and
contract assets.

To manage the risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, the Group only transacts with
reputable banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions. There has no
recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions. The expected credit loss
is insignificant.
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2022 2021
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c¢) Credit risk (cont’d)

(i)

Risk management (cont'd)

For other receivables, management makes
periodic collective assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of
deposits and other receivables based on
historical settlement records, past experience,
current conditions and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors. The
management believes that the expected credit
loss is insignificant.

For trade and retention receivables and
contract assets, management makes periodic
individual assessment on their recoverability.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and retention receivables and
contract assets.

To measure expected credit losses, the Group
categorises its trade and retention receivables
and contract assets based on the nature of
customer accounts and shared credit risk
characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of customers and the
corresponding historical credit losses
experienced. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables.

3

Z

B R EE (&)

3.1

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22

M EREE (E)
EEE ()

(0

(i)

B EE ()

REMERRME  EEE
REBEAETE  BEE
B RBRRREERBE
BEZNAELENSRRS
R B fth FE UK Y 7T 4R (B 4 T2
HAYE B 88 BF 4 bA B2 18 B BF
- ERERRAUEES
BIEFEK-

P LT AR K % P R B SRR A
ReaWEEmS  EEERE
HR MR B RF AL EL AT U = 1

REEEREBMBREE
BB oSk L AT EEBE
EERE BAAAEREERARR
EURERARENEER
AEZHREERE

RIERMEERSE A&
ERBEEFRENMEERT
ENFERBRBRDEARE
WA R EWRERURE
HEE -

BRBREZRLEREFHM
FARRRELENEEESR
FEBERME BLEEER
ETURBURREERF
EERYGREE NN RBRE
ENRERATEMEESR -



3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c) Credit risk (cont’d)

(i)

Risk management (cont’d)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31
March 2022 and 2021 was determined as
follows for trade and retention receivables
and contract assets:

Bt 7 [ B B B ()

3.1 BIEEBER(E)
(© FEERE(E)
(i EREE ()

EZEEL KRB
rE—ZZE-_—-%=F=+—H
B B Uit BR 3K R BB WL AR B8 R A
RENEENEFBRREEE
M

Trade and retention receivables
and contract assets
EURZRENRERUAREGNEE

Weighted
average Gross Net
expected  carrying Loss  carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
Y
BHEER IREAE BiERE IREFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FEx FEx
As at 31 March 2022 R=-ZB=-=—#=A=+-H
Provision on individual basis {8 R &% & 100% 1,059 (1,059) -
Provision on collective basis 1zt EEEEE 0.07% 130,514 (94) 130,420
131,573 __(1,153) _130,420
As at 31 March 2021 R-—E=-—-%=A=+-H
Provision on individual basis %187 & &5 & 100% 904 (904) -
Provision on collective basis 1z FE EE & 0.17% 82,977 (140) 82,837
83,881 (1,044) 82,837
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNnT'D) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(d) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the shorter and longer
term.
As at 31 March 2022, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$104,199,000
(2021: approximately HK$102,964,000) that could
be readily realised to generate cash inflows for
managing liquidity risk.
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the remaining
contractual maturities of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities, based on
undiscounted cash flows, are summarised below:
Total
contractual
undiscounted Less than
cash flows 3 months
BEORER
RERE HRZEA
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER
As at 31 March 2022 RZE-——F
=ZB=t+-A8
Trade and other payables ERERREMELR 34,386 34,386
Borrowings (Note) fE R (fE)
— unsecured — BER 1,121 1
— secured — FiE® 45,758 1,140
Foreign exchange forward PMERHASH
contract
—Inflow —FA (27,501) (27,501)
— Outflow — 28,436 28,436
Lease liabilities HEAE 51,770 8,070
As at 31 March 2021 NZE--%
ZA=t-H
Trade and other payables BRI R EMESH 35,975 35,975
Borrowings (Note) fa R ()
— unsecured —EHA 22,513 11,711
— secured —BHEA 50,561 1377
Foreign exchange forward HERHEH
contract
— Inflow —RA (27,371) (27371)
— Outflow — R 28,222 28,222
Lease liabilities HEEE 73,208 7,907

10,802
3,419

WEBEHRNT

Between 1 Between 2
and2years  and 5 years Over 5 years
-EMFR  WELER SERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FTER
4,559 9,118 27,522
21,713 819 -
4,559 9,118 32,088
25,119 18,337 =
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(d) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

Note: According to Hong Kong Interpretation 5, “Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause”, if a term loan agreement includes an overriding
repayment on demand clause (“callable feature”), which
gives the lender a clear and unambiguous unconditional
right to demand repayment at any time at its sole
discretion, a borrower shall classify the term loan as a
current liability in its statement of financial position, as
the borrower does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. Accordingly the long-term
portion of the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately
HK$37,250,000 (2021: approximately HK$40,968,000)
were classified as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022.

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives on capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings plus lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position plus net debt.
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BEREMBHEUARESEE ZERE
BUUREE AR

AEFIPHRBRERERE  AEEREH
BEXNTRROIRESHE BARRED
BA - BITIHRG  REEEEURD
&% -

rEBRBEEAGBLRERAES
MUTRFETHE—RBEK - BLEERRE
EFERUESBENE - FEFHEA
DBEEEMEEaERRERREEE
Wt & - ERBBEEGAMBMR KA
B[R | bn L EIEFEAE o
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.2 Capital management (cont'd)

3.3

Total bank borrowings (Note 24)
Lease liabilities (Note 17)
Less: cash and cash equivalents

(Note 22) (FizE22)
Net (cash)/debt (Re) BEEFHE
Total equity mES
Gearing ratio EEARFBLER

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had a net cash position.
Gearing ratio is not applicable. As at 31 March 2021,
the net debt position resulted primarily from normal
operating and investing activities of the Group which
include the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
(Note 16) during the year.

Fair value estimation

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets (current
portion), including trade, retention and other
receivables, contract assets and cash and cash
equivalents; and the Group’s financial liabilities,
including trade and other payables, contract liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities and borrowings,
approximate their carrying amounts due to their short-
term maturities.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings classified
under property, plant and equipment and investment
properties are carried at fair value. Details of the fair
value measurement of these leasehold land and
buildings and investment properties are disclosed in
Note 16 and Note 18, respectively.

3

BIRAT R (BYRE24)
HEEE (ME17)
B RERRAEEEY

Z

B R EE (&)

3.2 BAREHE(E)

3.3
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2022 2021
—E-F B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
42,083 66,574
49,996 70,397
(104,199) (102,964)
(12,120) 34,007
470,521 461,232
N/ATERA 7.4%

MR-ZB-=ZF=ZA=+—H0 A&EE:2
FREMR  WEEEBRRILFTEA -
R-ZZBEZ—-F=ZA=+—H BEEFHE
MREERHARENEREEERRKRE
EEER BERAFEBREVE K
ERERE (KiaE16) o

D ARfEMRE

HRASREEMEE (BHMD) (BEE
W - RRRERREMERR &
NEEURRERREEEY)  RE&E
BLRmeE(BERNIRRRAMEN
FoBHEE - TTEERAEERETOR
BHANEE  HAREREREEES °

FEBOERME BERRBRRE
MECZHETHRBFRAIETIR-
ZEHETHRETFRRENVEAR

TR B2 BIAMFE 1 6K MizE 1855



3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3 B

3.3 Fair value estimation (cont’d) 3.3
The Group measures its fair value of the financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2022 by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

* Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2022:

Level 1
E—E
HK$'000
FTART
As at 31 March 2022 R-E-—#=H=+-H
Liabilities &&

Foreign exchange forward contracts NEEHEN — THEER

— not qualified for hedge accounting R & -

As at 31 March 2021 R-ZZB--f5=A=+-H
Liabilities afE
Foreign exchange forward contracts NERBIEH — TREEK

— not qualified for hedge accounting ~ F R Hest -

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

ERERE @)

A RE LT (E)
AEBEZANRSTERAREZEERM AT
ABmAHSBENER 2R =-F=—
ZA=t+—-HAEAARENEREzZEMIA
ZARME - BEWABIBETIIRT At
MAOERADAEREBAN=ERBE :

s NEEEFEBEEIREERMSMN
HECREHE) (B1E) -

s RTFIEBFEENBREN =&
EREENTBEENBABE 7
REE(BHINER) B E (AR
BER)(FE28) -

s EHEFEEUHERBUBRREDTSH
BH@ABB (MR THEEGAR
B)(5E3E) °

TRENAEER-Z--F=A
=+ -BERANESRZEMTIA :

Level 2 Level 3 Total
- F=B Bt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET AT TERT

935 - 935

851 - 851
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

4.1 Provision for inventory obsolescence

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
evaluates the ageing of inventories, their historical sales
pattern, their subsequent utilisation and other factors
and compare the carrying value of inventories to their
estimated net realisable values. The identification of
inventory obsolescence and estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventory and impairment
provision in the year in which such estimate has been
changed.

4.2 Provision for impairment of trade and retention

receivables and contract assets

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade and
retention receivables and contract assets based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s historical default
rates, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
The estimation of expected credit losses requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of receivables and loss for
the impairment of receivables recognised in the periods
in which such estimates have been changed.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt
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BEREFHEE R A

REBRBBESRRAMREE NG
RFE - BREREEAEZBRTHRES
2 HAE -

KREBHRRELEERRBRR - IEHNSETE
FREREEIRHBRERMERE - HEER
BERT —EMRFEZRAEENEARAE
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4.1

4.2
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (cONT'D)

4.3

4.4

Recognition for contract revenue over time

The Group uses the output method in accounting for its
construction contracts for sales and installation of
kitchen collections, and other construction and
decoration works. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation is determined
by reference to independent surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract work. The
Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue, contract costs, variation orders and contract
claims prepared for each construction contract as the
contract progresses. Budgeted construction income is
determined in accordance with the terms set out in the
relevant contracts. Budgeted construction costs which
mainly comprise sub-contracting charges and costs of
materials are prepared by the management on the basis
of quotations from time to time provided by major
contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the Group’s
management conducts periodic review on the
management budgets by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in
estimating the total contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims which may have an
impact in terms of progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Valuation of leasehold land and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is the current prices in an
active market for similar properties. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information from the
valuations of leasehold land and buildings performed by
external professional valuers by using the open market
value approach. If the Group used different valuation
techniques, the fair value of the leasehold land and
buildings may be different and thus may have an impact
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

4

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

BEAREFHEFT R HE @

4.3

4.4

BRWERERE RS

FEERBEIAEBEERZEFERBENU
REMEEREBIRZ IREHRKER
REHZ BHEEZTREEDKRED
ETTIRZBYASHEENIRNE
BMEIMEMETE ARBRENET
AR RETE IRENZEHIRE
BHRAS  BEHERANORMEME -
FEIRBATIREBESQMEKR
ME -BEIRRATRREIBEN
REBRA  AEEBRASREEK
B HEFRESTHREMAZREN
LEBBERMET HEFERK
BT AKEEEEEBLEHE
EoHEERRAERRNEERR -

BB AN  AHNRE  BE
HERANEEBBEREEREY
B MBS AR o

HE+REFHEE

DAREZREBBABLMERNERT
B2 ERMER - EELMEE  AEH
ZEMAIIBEEMGEEMU QRS EE
HETHREFETHEZIEN - 5
SERATEFMAAN BAELHER
BEZAREREF K MEERE
WERIEZIHE -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (cONT'D)

4.5

Income tax

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred income tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.
Management’s assessment is regularly reviewed and
additional deferred income tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

5 REVENUE

Sale of goods t
Contract revenue

[\

minE
Rz

)

o>

4

Z

BAREF R HAE @

4.5

Wz

Timing of revenue recognition:

— At a point in time
— Over time

R
— R
— BB
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FriS®

fisl 1R 7] B2 R SR FERR B A LUK 857 18
B8 BIRERSHREER RS RE A
BIREIEHER - BE W THRAZIELRR
SHEEBEFTEEEBFHEEE -
FTERBIREMN - RRERBEF KK
REBZHRBEE - AEBEHEH
EEE 2 ME - BERATREARKE
SABURA - BE AW EEIE ISR EE
RS HERRAIMELEFIISHEE -

FEBAEEBRPEABNFAE - R
BEMSHBERAFHEAHE - X
ERXGRIAEHEEIRERKFIENR
HZERE 2 BRRBERBRIREL
ke MABERSTEELSR
BRE 2 B 2 PR S B IR IE Fr 15 B 5t
&

2022 2021
—E-_—F —E-—5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
430,955 381,594
63,637 40,860
494,592 422,454
430,955 381,594
63,637 40,860
494,592 422,454




OTHER INCOME 6

Rental income HEWA
Government grants (Note) BT B (B )
Others Hth

Note:

Government subsidies of HK$730,000 were granted from the one-off Retail
Sector Subsidy Scheme and Construction Sector Subsidy Scheme under Anti-
Epidemic Fund launched by the Government of the Hong Kong SAR.
Remaining subsidies of HK$50,000 granted from The Government of Macao
Special Administrative Region’s 10-Billion-Pataca Fund. The Group has
complied all attached conditions before 31 March 2021 and recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7

Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain 5 (&518), W - B8

— Forward contracts (Note 25) — EZHEH (MEE25)

— Other exchange gain — HE R km

Fair value (loss)/gain on investment BEMEND E (BB), W
properties (Note 18) (Fif=E18)

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
COVID-19-related rent concessions

HEME  BERRBER

2019 BAR RS HEBEESER

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

HAWA
2022 2021
B F B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
715 604
- 780
1,290 2,327
2,005 3,711

FfEE

AEBEEBERTHEERNFHENEESEHN—KX
MEELEHEAR A REEH A SN BUTE R
730,000 7T & T % 85 50,0008 JT T BB FI 45 B T I
ERFNEEREEDESEE - AEEER -2 =—
F=ZR=+-BAMEMEMRSFRGELEEFERER

HRERARR

Hit (B18), K - B

2022 2021
B F B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
(2,154) 544
634 162
(2,000) 700
(292) (3,847)
2,451 6,028
(1,361) 3,587
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) are the Group’s chief operating decision-makers.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the Executive Directors for
the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

The Group’s reportable operating segments are as follows:

— Architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom collections
and others segment — importing, wholesale and retail of
architectural builders’ hardware and bathroom
collections and others

—  Kitchen collection and furniture segment — designing,
importing, wholesale, retail and installation of kitchen
collections and furniture

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in
its consolidated financial statements prepared under HKFRSs.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on the measure of gross profit.
Other operating income and expenses are not allocated to the
operating segments as the information is not regularly
reviewed by the Executive Directors.

Segment assets include all assets but exclude current income
tax recoverable, deferred income tax assets, investment
properties, cash and cash equivalents, property, plant and
equipment related to the office premises of the Group and
other corporate assets which are managed on central basis
and are not directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities but exclude current
and deferred income tax liabilities, borrowings, derivative
financial liabilities and other corporate liabilities which are
managed on central basis and are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt
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8

SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D) 8 SEER @

Reportable segment revenue
from external customers
Reportable segment cost of sales

Reportable segment gross profit

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Reversal of provision
for/(provision for)
inventory obsolescence
Finance income
Finance costs
Net impairment losses on financial
and contract assets

Reportable segment assets
Additions to non-current

segment assets during the year

Reportable segment liabilities

2022
B &
Architectural
builders’
hardware, Kitchen
bathroom collection
collections and
and others furniture Total
BERE - BERE
FARERAEM AR et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
AEHEHIIEF DR E
362,269 132,323 494,592
AER 2 EHE R (244,091) (67,005) (311,096)
T ERzDEBER 118,178 65,318 183,496
ME - BERRERE
(6,356) 4,201) (10,557)
FRAREERE (17,624) (13,027) (30,651)
PBEFERERD(BE)
1,140 94) 1,046
B FEUR A 159 2 161
BMKER (1,766) (1,940) (3,706)
SRR EHNEEZRERE
FEE 47) 47) 94)
AERzDPEE 273,603 118,849 392,452
FERFREBDBEE
ZRE 4,292 1,780 6,072
AERzFHBEE 84,126 81,165 165,291

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

151



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt

Z

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNT'D) 8 ZEER @
2021
—E-—F
Architectural
builders’
hardware, Kitchen
bathroom collection
collections and
and others furniture Total
EERS - EEXRE
EAREREM RARM #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHE T FET FET
Reportable segment revenue AR HHNEF 2 B
from external customers 322,280 100,174 422,454
Reportable segment cost of sales ] FE 3R > 0 ZR4HE A A< (207,126) (56,743) (263,869)
Reportable segment gross profit AER 2D EER 115,154 43,431 158,585
Depreciation of property, M BERRBINE
plant and equipment (6,162) (4,411) (10,573)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  fFFREEEFTE (23,592) (13,949) (37,541)
Provision for inventory BREFERE
obsolescence (1,146) (4,090) (5,236)
Finance income BAFEUR A 172 6 178
Finance costs B % E A (1,192) (182) (1,374)
Net impairment losses on financial £@RkANEE ZRESE
and contract assets HEE (85) (54) (139)
Reportable segment assets TERC DEPERE 300,221 84,781 385,002
Additions to non-current segment  FERIREHHEE
assets during the year ZRE 1,837 2,305 4,142
Reportable segment liabilities HERz DEEE 99,752 73,917 173,669
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in

the consolidated financial statements as follows:

Reportable segment gross profit

Group gross profit

Reportable segment assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Deferred income tax assets
Current income tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Other corporate assets

Group assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Borrowings

Current income tax liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities
Other corporate liabilities

Group liabilities

AJEHK 2D EHEF

SEER

EHR T HEE

Y3 - B RRIE
REMHE
EEFFSHERE
AW E AR RSB
RERBRETEED
Hitt X EE

SEEE

AEH 22 HEE

(EEN
EFREHER
fTEEmas
EEFREHEE
Hit b8 E

SEAE

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

DEBER @)

FEBTEREEDBE

FTEREAEELER

EUMBHRER IR BEBELROT :

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
183,496 158,585
183,496 158,585
392,452 385,002
196,116 171,510
- 32,300

5,873 7,019
3,136 3,604
104,199 102,964
448 279
702,224 702,678
2022 2021
—Eg- —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FBT
165,291 173,669
40,962 44 834
5,066 2,325
935 851
18,900 19,276
549 491
231,703 241,446
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8

Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNT'D) 8 SEER @

Geographical information

RiE2HIHER

Non-current assets
(excluding financial assets

Revenue from external and deferred income tax
customers assets)
RBEE(FTEESREE
VR Bk RIELERERERE)
2022 2021 2022 2021

—E-_F —E-—5F —E-_—F —_E-—5F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TEx FBx TET Tz
Hong Kong (domicile) EB(TELEMI) 480,283 409,579 312,548 340,507
PRC A 14,309 12,875 2,058 2,825
Total et 494,592 422,454 314,606 343,332
The geographical location of customers is determined based ERtBUBERBRVERMEMEME ° 3F
on the location at which the goods were delivered. The RBEECHEVENREZEEZERVE
geographical location of the non-current assets is determined MiE o
based on the physical location of the assets.
During the year ended 31 March 2022, approximately BE_2__F=-A=1+—-RLEE F5H
HK$53,605,000 or approximately 11% of the Group’s Wik $ 49 53,605,000 78 LA 11% R EE— 4
revenue was derived from a single external customer (2021: HNEF(ZEZ—F  HEE-FFEFKE
no single customer contributed over 10% of the Group's W R 10%) ©

revenue).

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22



EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 BxXME

2022 2021
—E-_—F —E-—5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRET TEx
Employee benefit expenses (Note 11) ETEAMNZE (FzE11) 72,100 64,506
Government grant (Note 11) BUFwEE (EE11) - (7,176)
Auditor’s remuneration BRI
— Audit services — RERE 1,770 1,700
— Non-audit services — FRBURTS 195 195
Cost of inventories (Note 20) FEMA (MEE20) 294,322 235,633
Depreciation of property, WE - BB RREIE (L 16)
plant and equipment (Note 16) 16,763 16,269
Depreciation of right-of-use asset ERAREENE (MEE17)
(Note 17) 30,651 37,541
Expenses relating to short-term lease EHE SR (EE17)
(Note 17) 4,983 1,283
Direct operating expenses arising BEEHEWAZRENE
from investment properties that HELERX
generated rental income 118 108
(Reversal of provision for)/provision BEEE (BMEERE) BE (K 20)
for inventory obsolescence (Note 20) (1,046) 5,236

3BT R R A T 2021/224F F 1] 155
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10 FINANCE COSTS, NET

11

Finance costs
Bank borrowings
Interest expenses on lease liabilities

Finance income
Bank interest income

Finance costs, net

Salaries and allowances,
including directors” emoluments
Pension costs — defined
contribution plans
Other long-term employee benefits
Government grants (Note)

During the year, forfeited contributions totalling HK$2,000
(2021: Nil) were used to reduce the current year’s level of
contributions and there was no forfeited contribution
available at 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$2,000) to reduce
future years’ contributions.

Wage subsidies of approximately HK$7,176,000 were granted from the Hong
Kong SAR Government’s Employment Support Scheme under Anti-Epidemic
Fund for the use of paying wages of employees from June to November 2020.

10

M%ER
RITERK
HEBERNERMXZ (ME17)

kT ON
RATR B WA

MBER - FHE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 11

HERRM  BREESHE

BAEEA — RERKTE

HitREESRER
BTG ()

BT
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MEER - FHE

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
1,386 1,374
2,351 2,950
3,737 4,324
(161) (178)
3,576 4,146
ETIRAZH

2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FET
68,432 61,997
2,468 2,209
1,200 300

- (7,176)

72,100 57,330

3
FA °

RAFE BRWERHAF2000BLT(=F

——F E)CEARNBLARFES

A—E—-—

—_

HFOKFE - T
FZA=Z+—BHMES RN
(ZZEZ—5:2,00087T) Al AR KEE
1

AEBESEBEINTHRERAHEREESEHNE
ME|HUTBNIEREEN7,176,00058 T » WARE
NEIZE-EEAAZ+-AZEHS-



12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(@)

Directors’ remuneration

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid or payable to
the directors of the Company are as follows:

2022

Executive directors

TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

TSE Sun Wai, Albert

TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

LAU Shiu Sun

Independent non-executive directors
WONG Wah, Dominic

WAN Sze Chung

Luk Wang Kwong

BTES

B (EF)
B R

HHE (EBREE)
HIERE

el

BUKHTES
BE
BB

BERE

12 EECEMNEREERAIARSHMN

AL

(@ EEZHH

ENRENARLTES 2MESBENT ¢

—E-C—F
Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
Directors’ Salaries benefit
fees  and bonus scheme Total
BHKEF
ez
EEme FHepw4 EEH st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTEx FExT FTER
100 2,157 12 2,269
100 3,732 - 3,832
100 3,214 18 3,332
100 2,504 18 2,622
100 1,616 18 1,734
108 - - 108
108 - - 108
108 - - 108
824 13,223 66 14,113

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNT'D)

(@) Directors’ remuneration (cont’d)

2021

Executive directors HiTES

TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman) WEE(EE)
TSE Sun Wai, Albert HHE

TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director) #7185 (ESELKE)
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin AR

LAU Shiu Sun ZIR%
Independent non-executive directors BYFHITES
WONG Wah, Dominic =i

WAN Sze Chung BB

Luk Wang Kwong BERE

No directors have waived or agreed to waive their
emoluments in respect of the year ended 31 March 2022
(2021: Nil).

12

Z

EECEINRERRLERBESTM
== )
(@ EEBZHFMGE)
—E- 5
Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
Directors’ Salaries benefit
fees  and bonus scheme Total
BHREF
stz
EEHE HeRkw4 EEHR Mt

HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET TER FET

100 2,318 18 2,436
100 3,541 - 3,641
100 3,010 18 3,128
100 2,288 18 2,406
100 1,566 18 1,684
108 - - 108
108 - - 108
108 - - 108

824 12,723 72 13,619

BE-ZZ-—_HS=ZA=+t-HLFE">
VEEEHRIEDERRERE2ME (=
B-FE) -
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNT'D)

(b)

(c)

(d

(e)

®

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2021: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group does
not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2021: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and controlled entities with such directors

As at 31 March 2022, there are no loans, quasi-loans or
other dealings in favour of the directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors (2021: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Note 32, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Key management personnel

The Group regards the executive directors as the key
management personnel. Details of the remuneration
paid to them are set out in (a).

12

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

BEECvRANEZRABERS FHMM
Ax @@

(b) EFZRAFNSZRBEBEN
FR- BEEEC WIS REEMER
ARFZLBBBERN (ZB—F &) -
(0 HMERUESHEBMAETE=TRE

REBE-_ZE-_—_F=A=+—HLEFE"

AEBUEREMNE=ZSRUESRY
MAHXNRE(ZEZ—F 1 &) -

d EHEOEE SZSEZEFNZAE
RBEZSEESNHREIRBREMNER
HUERREREENHMERZHNER
MRZB-Z-F=ZA=+—0 HTEHE
T BUEEEEHNEABBREZS
EENHEIRRERAVER  BLE
RREREENHMRE (== —F:
&) o

() EEREXRS ZHHAAHONEAER
BRRMIEE32IRTBE I REEARFHE
B ARBWEBITEMELEEE

HEMALARDESHEEREBREEEPE
FEARSECEERS - ZHNEQN -

H EREEAR

XN TFRENHMEFTERE @R -
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND 12
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNT'D)

(8

Five highest paid individuals ®
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2021: four)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments paid or payable to
the five highest paid individual during the year are as

follows:

Salaries and allowances
Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

E ey Q=
BAREHA — RERUGTE

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands (in HK$)

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

AR (BT

1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 & 7T
2,000,001 & JTZE 2,500,000 78 7T
2,500,001 & T ZE 3,000,000 78 7T
3,000,001 & 7T £ 3,500,000 8 5T
3,500,001 & JT & 4,000,000 & 7T

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22

Z

EECvRAREZERDZRS FM
AT @

EERSHFMAL
FREAKEzIERESFHALEEN
(ZE=—F O ES REME
EIEHR EXFIRZDTA - FABSX
NHEZNTHRERSHMA L 2N
LU

2022 2021

—E-_—F —E-—fF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

13,358 12,926

66 72

13,424 12,998
MEeNFUTEHR :

Number of individuals

AE
2022 2021
—E-__—F —E-—5F
1 1
1 2
1 _
1 1
1 1
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group

is 25% (2021: 25%) for the year.

Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
PRC enterprise income tax

Total current tax
Deferred taxation (Note 26)

Income tax expense

IR R
HBFEB
RS

BN AR IR AR
EEBR (ML 26)

FriSBiBa X

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic tax
rates in the region in which the Group operates as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at domestic tax
rates applicable to profits in the
respective region

Effect of tax reduction in current year

Tax effect of recognition of
previously unrecognised tax loss

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for
tax purposes

Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses

Unrecognised tax losses

Income tax expense

BRI AT S A

RIS R R E A f A
ATENHIE

REERBRONWEZE
BRBEREAREBEZ
BIES R

BAERBWA
TANEL RS X
BABERERNERR
RERH AR IR

Frigsip

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

13 FE8iExX

EBNEBHRIDURNEEGHERBUEFERE
16.5%(ZZF=—F : 16.5%) sTIREE - RAK
FE > AEEPEHBLAANBERRER25%

(ZBZ—5F 1 25%) °

2022 2021
—E- & —E -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
2,877 2,670
622 1
3,499 2,671
189 (845)
3,688 1,826

FEBABRBIEISEN 2 HERBRERAE
EEEEMTNE 2 AT EME 2 ER

BEZEZRMT

Group

£33
2022 2021
—Eg- —E-—5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
15,582 12,595

Biz

2,397 1,299
(110) (97)
(365) (427)
(34) (1,457)
477 443
(66) (10)
1,389 2,075
3,688 1,826
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14 DIVIDENDS

(@)

(b)

14 KRE

Dividends declared and paid during the year @

Final dividend in respect of 2021 of
HKO.5 cent (2021: in respect of
2020 of HKO.5 cent) per share

Interim dividend in respect of 2022 of
HKO.5 cent (2021: in respect of
2021 of HKO.5 cent) per share

Dividends for the year

Interim dividend of HKO.5 cent
(2021: HKO.5 cent) per share

Proposed final dividend of HK1 cent
(2021: HKO.5 cent) per share (Note)

Note:

TEC-F2RERE

BROSBI(ZFE=—F:

—EIRFZRERE
BRO.5%4)

—EIEHEHRE

BROSBI(ZE=—F :

SR -F2PHRE
B 0.584L)

(b)

FREIR EEIR0.5 8L
ZEZ—F 0584

BRI E SR 1B

(ZZZ=—% 1 0.5784l) (FIEE)

Final dividends have been proposed by the directors after the reporting
date. The proposed dividends, subject to the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, are not reflected as dividend

payable as at 31 March 2022.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22

RAEFEERRIKE ZKRE

2022 2021
—E-_—F —E-—5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
3,003 3,003
3,003 3,003
6,006 6,006
FERE
2022 2021
—Eg- —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
3,003 3,003
6,006 3,003
9,009 6,006

FYEE -

EENHREARERRBRGRE - ZHKKE
(EFRENERRRBFAS LHAE) WHERIR
BRZBZZFZAZ+-—BZERRE -



15 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

(b)

Basic @
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the

profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by

the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Profit attributable to equity owners INA T A B FEAERF
of the Company

Number of ordinary shares in issue EBRTEBRRE(FR)
(thousands)

Diluted (b)
Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March

2022 is the same as the basic earnings per share as there

were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares issued

(2021: Nil).

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

15 BR&EF

E-¥N
BREFBEFNIRBEARQAMBEERE
EABRAFEANCBTEBERREETE

2022 2021
B —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
11,894 10,769
600,600 600,600

#E

ARTED R ITEEHELZER  WE
E-EC_E=ZA=+—-HLEEZS
REFEENESRESBRBER (=2
——F o
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Z

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 V¥ BENRKE
Leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings  Leasehold fixtures and Motor
(Note) improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEL
kEF HE  BH-#EB
(HisE) MELE ST AE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEx TEn TET TERr TR
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2020 R-ZE-ZEE=H=+—-H 152,300 20,543 1,895 319 175,057
Additions nE 78,161 5,690 592 - 84,443
Disposal HeE - (3,336) (511) - (3,847)
Depreciation (Note 9) E (fiEE9) (8,399) (7,338) (403) (129) (16,269
Revaluation ELr 6,338 - - - 6,338
Exchange difference ELZER - 125 43 1 169
At 31 March 2021 R-E--£=A=1+—H 228,400 15,684 1,616 191 245,891
Transfer from investment property & B R &M (i3t 18)

(Note 18) 30,300 - - - 30,300
Additions E - 6,140 181 - 6,321
Disposal HeE - (313) - (16) (329)
Depreciation (Note 9) E (M) (8,721) (7,483) (436) (123) (16,763)
Revaluation ELr 3,721 - - - 3,721
Exchange difference EXZR - 12 7 2 21
At 31 March 2022 R-ZE-_-£=A=1+—H 253,700 14,040 1,368 54 269,162
At 31 March 2021 W-E--#£=HA=1+-H
Valuation hiE 228,400 - - - 228,400
Cost Rk - 80,379 20,525 1236 102,140
Accumulated depreciation SiFE - (64,695) (18,909) (1,045) (84,649)
Net book amount BRI RE 228,400 15,684 1,616 191 245,891
At 31 March 2022 R-E-—#=8=+-H
Valuation fHE 253,700 - - - 253,700
Cost Rk - 84,495 20,730 1,093 106318
Accumulated depreciation SiHIFE - (70,455) (19,362) (1,039) (90,856)
Net book amount EEE 253,700 14,040 1,368 54 269,162
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (coNT'D) 16 Y% - BERRE @

Note: MEE
If leasehold land and buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the HEETHREFNRESHAREERZS  BELEN
amounts would be as follows: T
2022 2021
—EB-F B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHExT
Cost 2% 143,265 112,965
Accumulated depreciation e (12,906) (10,041)
Net book amount BREEE 130,359 102,924
Bank borrowings are secured by the leasehold land and buildings in Hong SRAT AR LR AR E 149 160,600,000 8 T (= F = — %
Kong with a total carrying amount of approximately HK$160,600,000 (2021: #9166,233,00078 70) 2 BB E T 18 RAEF AR (K
approximately HK$166,233,000) (Note 24). i24) e
The following table analyses the leasehold land and buildings TRUMBEZEDTRANESIRZBAEL K
carried at fair value, by valuation method. g=-1==I

Fair value measurements using
RATISHEZARENE

Quoted
prices in
active Significant Significant
markets for other unobservable
identical observable inputs
assets inputs (Level 3)
Description R (Level 1) (Level 2) (Note)
HEEER EXRHEAM ERRT
TEETS AEE HEDARE
ZIRME WA BE (5=R8)
(5—F) (B=f@) (MI=E)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T T FHET
As at 31 March 2022 R-B--H=A=+—H
Recurring fair value measurements &4 A RETE
— Leasehold land and buildings — &+ RS - - 253,700
As at 31 March 2021 R-B-—-F=A=+—H
Recurring fair value measurements &% 42 RAETE
— Leasehold land and buildings — &tz - - 228,400
Note: P =E -
For fair value measurement under Level 3, inputs for the asset or liability are BREZEETZARBHEMS  EERBBEZHAR
not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs). BT EENSEE (T BN A AER -

3BT R R A T 2021/224F F 1] 165
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conT'D)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were
no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

Opening balance FHEEER

Addition wE

Transfer from investment property — #EREWE (MiE18)
(Note 18)

Depreciation e

Gain/(loss) on revaluation recognised REfb2EINERER >
in other comprehensive income Bk (ER)

Closing balance FRER

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were valued at 31
March 2022 by an independent and qualified valuer, Memfus
Wong Surveyors Limited, who holds a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the
locations and segments of the leasehold land and buildings
valued.

The Group's finance department includes a team that reviews
the valuations performed by the independent valuer for
financial reporting purposes. This team reports directly to the
board of directors. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the review team and the valuer
annually.

16
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Z

M - BERRE @

AEBzEEARERERANEBR 2 BE
BeEHREREBER  BREEANEE
RMeBAREH -FR - F-—F F-BRSE
ZEEAEES -

MAERTIBEGAYE (F=B) 22 RE

e

Leasehold land and buildings

HETHREF

2022 2021
—g- —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FExT
228,400 152,300
- 78,161

30,300 -
(8,721) (8,399)
3,721 6,338
253,700 228,400

KEBZHERE
RAEECHELHRETHE LS ERMGER
ERERFGMTARAAR-ZF--F=A
=t—BftE LEEASEHEERATEXE
% BERESAEETHREFHIEHERS
BREATIEE ©

REBEPBHEE AU BREENERNE
MAEEMATETAEZER - ZEBREERE
EEER - MEERSFREABMNREER
BRER -
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (coNT'D) 16

Valuation processes of the Group (cont’d)

Level 3 fair values of leasehold land and buildings have been
derived using the direct comparison approach, which
basically uses the comparable sales transactions as available
in the relevant market to derive the fair value of the
properties. Sale prices of comparable properties in close
proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
time of transactions, property size and location. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is the market
unit rate.

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs
TABRRBARE TAERBGAREHE

Market unit rate Office: HK$18,300 to HK$18,400 (2021:
mIHEER HK$19,400 to HK$19,600) per square feet

of saleable area
BFiE ERAEESFARI18,300ETE 18,400
BT (ZEZ—5F 19,4008 TE 19,6008 7T)

Shop: HK$80,300 (2021: HK$77,800) per
square feet of saleable area

5 BEREAETHIRE0,300BT(ZF=—
% :77,80087T)

Warehouse: HK$3,600 (2021: HK$3,600)
per square feet of saleable area

ER BRERESFIR3600EBT(=ZF=—
£ 13,6008 7T)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the
year.

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

W - BERSE @)

REBE 2z HERE (&)
HELTHREFZE=ZBANENEAREL
BURSH - EELBUEZ—RFAAEEDS L7
EHZAELBHEERZEBWEQE - B
METELENECEBOHARSERE U
EHERGHETREM CERFEHAR - It
HMEEZRERBABBATSEER -

FRAFNAEATUERGARE (F=E) 22
REFEZER

Relationship of unobservable inputs
of fair value
DABEBRSRTATBRAAHE ZBER

The higher the market unit rate, the

higher the fair value
TSEEELE - AAELE

FREETERERZD -
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Z

17 LEASES 17 #HE
This note provides information for leases where the Group is R REAREERFBAZAEERES -
a lessee.
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of @ RESHBERRRABAZLHE

financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows
the following balances relating to the leases:

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Properties LS

Lease liabilities HEAE
Current i
Non-current FERE

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended
31 March 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$10,867,000 (2021: approximately HK$30,284,000).

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (b)
comprehensive income
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
shows the following amounts relating to the leases:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEE ZITERXZ (MEE9)
assets (Note 9)

Expenses relating to short-term FREHEE M (M)
leases (Note 9)

Interest expense (Note 10) MBI (MEE10)

The total cash outflow for leases in the year ended 31
March 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$36,241,000 (2021: approximately HK$34,448,000).

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22

BEMBRRRIRUATHAESE 2
#EER

2022 2021
—EBCF —E-—5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
45,444 65,141
27,902 28,477
22,094 41,920
49,996 70,397

BE_Z__F=A=+—HLEE,
NEFEAEEEL10,867,0008 T (=&
——% 1 #30,284,00078T) °

REEZEBBERABAZEHE

REZEWERIIRUTREEABEZ
B

2022 2021
—E-_—F —E-—5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
30,651 37,541
4,983 1,283
2,351 2,950

BE-Z-—_F=-A=+—RHLEE"
HECZHERESREHNE36,241,00058 T
(ZBZ=—1F 1 #934,448,000787T) °
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18

LEASES (CONT'D) 17 #HE @)

(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for
The Group leases various properties including retail
shops, warehouse and office premises. The lease terms
are between one to four years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 REWH
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiERT
At 1 April REA—H 32,300 31,600
Fair value (loss)/gains recognised EERRBERALE (BB WE
in the profit or loss (2,000) 700
Transfer to property, EEYE - BERRE (M 106)
plant and equipment (Note 16) (30,300) -
At 31 March MR=A=+—H — 32,300

The fair value (losses)/gains on investment properties is
included in “Other (losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (Note 7).

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

(o)

FEEHEEBREARAR

AEBARSENYE  EREETER
H HARETENE AMNT-Z
Pz o

HERENELER  YEERERR
ZARFR B AR o 12 B 1 R AR A e A0 AE A
it HWREBBAAFSEZHEEET 2
AR ©

REMENDAE(BER) BBEDFAGER
EWREERAR [ EAf (ER), W - F8E] (
F7) e
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18

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D)

Information about fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs:

Description

As at 31 March 2021

Z

18 BREWE @)

EREAEAT THRB ARENAAET B
HER

Fair value measurements using
RATH&EEZARENE

Recurring fair value measurements EE M4 AREFE

— Investment properties

Quoted
prices in
active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEER ERHAM EZPN
EIR T I5 AR TATEREE
ZME WABE WABE
BR (8—18) (F=R) (B=FE)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FiExT FHET
R-ZE-_—F=A=+—H
—REYE - - 32,300

During the year ended 31 March 2022, property located in
Hong Kong was transferred from investment properties to
property, plant and equipment. The valuation as at the
transfer date is undertaken by an independent and qualified
valuer, Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited.

As at 31 March 2021, valuations were undertaken by an
independent and qualified valuer, Memfus Wong Surveyors
Limited. The valuation processes are the same as the
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings held for own use

(Note 16).

Information about fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Unobservable inputs
TREER AR

Market unit rate
MIZEEER

Range of unobservable inputs
A ERA A BEEHE

HK$18,400 (2021: HK$19,600) per square feet
of saleable area
ERAEESFEHIRISA0B L (ZE-—F:
19,6008 7T)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques used

during the year.

BE-ZE-—_F=ZA=1+—HLFE  URE
BNYEBREMEEEZYE BERREE -
RERABRCEEIEDHBLSERMGER
EREASTERT AR D BT ©

R-BE-—F=A=+—80 " HEIEIHSE
NEERGEMERERNMITERAAE
T AERRERBEFEANEEL HRET
ZEHHER (i 16)

FRRAREATABEGARE (E=B) 22
REFERZEHR

Relationship of unobservable inputs
of fair value
DREFERTAIBRR AR 2 BE

The higher the market unit rate, the higher
the fair value
MSEEEMS  AREM

i

FRMGEREGRESE -
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

19 KMEBATER

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March

2022:

Name of subsidiary

HEAFAM

Accord Sky Limited
Accord Sky Limited
Asia Bon Company Limited

ER(EH) BEERARAT

Asia Richly Limited
DHEEERAF

Bonco Ironmongery Limited
RETERHERLA
Cypress Design Limited
MR ERAT

D.LY. Limited

D.LY. Limited

E. Bon Building Materials
Company Limited

RITRENRERAR
H20 (Pro) Limited
KzRERAR

Kitchen (Pro) Limited
HZRERAR

Massford (Hong Kong) Limited
ZE (BB ERAA
Massford (Shanghai) Limited*

22 (LB n2BERAR
22 (LB BLBRAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

/R

Hong Kong
95
Hong Kong
&%

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
&
Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&2
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
&2
Hong Kong
i

PRC

HE

Particulars of
issued share capital

BRITRAHE

1,000,000 ordinary shares

1,000,000 REER
100 ordinary shares
100 REBR

1 ordinary share

1REER

10,000 ordinary shares
10,000 REER

1 ordinary share
1REER

2 ordinary shares
REBR

6,000 ordinary shares

6,000 REER

2 ordinary shares
REBR

1,000 ordinary shares
1000 REER

10,000 ordinary shares

10,000 REBR

US$250,000

250,000 %70

Legal structure

EEER

Company with limited liabilities

Company with limited liabilities
ARERATE

Company with limited liabilities

ARERAT
Company with limited liabilities

BRERLT

all

Company with limited liabilities
BRERAR
Company with limited liabilities

BREMAT

all

Company with limited liabilities

ARELLA
Company with limited liabilities

BREMAT

al

Company with limited liabilities

Wholly foreign owned enterprise

2ONERE

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

UTHR

AFREE:

Equity interest held

figelie
2022 2021
—E-CF C“EC”-

100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

CEC_FE-RA=+—-HZETEWE

Principal activities and place of operation

IREBRERDE

Retail sales of kitchen collections and
furniture through retail shops in
Hong Kong

ERTEENERZEHERR
REREM

Property holding in Hong Kong
REBENERE

Property holding in Hong Kong
REBENERE

Importing and sale of architectural builders’
hardware in Hong Kong

REBENRHEREDS

Consulting services for interior design and
fitting out works

ENRTREBIRZEHARS

Handling of human resources planning and
development activities of the Group

EEARBANERRIRERSE

Importing and sale of architectural builders’
hardware and bathroom collections in
Hong Kong

REBENRHEREREREARME

Importing and sale of bathroom collections
in Hong Kong
REBEORBEHAR

Importing, sale and installation of kitchen
collections in Hong Kong

REBER  HERZREERRE

Supply of architectural builders” hardware
and bathroom collections for property
development in Hong Kong

RERMERERSREARET
NEREER

Supplying architectural builders” hardware
and bathroom collections for property
development in Shanghai

RESHEREREREARET
ESEELE
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19 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (conT'D) 19 MEAR#ERE
Place of
incorporation/  Particulars of
Name of subsidiary establishment issued share capital Legal structure Equity interest held Principal activities and place of operation
WEAFER 2R/ HIBY BRIRAHE EEAR Fris A TEEBRERNH
2022 2021
—E-CF CZE--%
Oriental Forward Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Property Holding in Hong Kong
RAKEBRLT B2 1REBR BREELT REBENERE
Oriental Longway Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Property Holding in Hong Kong
RARBRRAT B 1REER RREELT REBEIREE
Right Century Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares ~ Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Retail sales of bathroom accessories and
decoration materials through retail shops
in Hong Kong
BIERAF 3 1,000 REBR BREELF ERTEENBEZEHESA
B REHHH
Shanghai Tech Pro International PRC US$300,000 Wholly foreign owned enterprise 100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural builders
Trading Company Limited* hardware and bathroom collections in
LESRERESERAT the PRC
LERRERESERAT  FE 300,000 %7 ALK RPEEORHAERED S REARTE
Shanghai Techpro Interior PRC RMBS5,000,000 Wholly foreign owned enterprise 100% 100%  Undertaking interior decoration and project
Decoration Company Limited* management for property development
LESREAKHERLT in the PRC
LSEREREHERLT  PE AR 5,000,000 EHELR RPERRENEE AR ERRET
SR
Sunny Building and Decoration - Hong Kong 6,000 ordinary shares  Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Retail sales of architectural builders
Materials Company Limited hardware and bathroom collections
through retail shops in Hong Kong
HHEHMHESTARRAR &8 6,000 REER BRERAA ERTEENERREHERETS
RER%E
Techpro Trading Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares  Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural builders
hardware
ERENESERAT i 1,000 REER AREELT EOR#ERERS
VIA (Shanghai) Limited* PRC US$250,000 Wholly foreign owned enterprise 100% 100%  Importing and sale of bathroom, furniture
B (L8 RABEERAT and kitchen collections in Shanghai
Em(LE)RAFERRAA 250,000 % 70 BHELE REBENRHEEHE  BARERRE
* The English names of certain subsidiaries referred herein represent * HREMETFHEQRLEERRAER  MZ
management’s best effort in translating the Chinese names of these ERNERHEEBRBEFXBBI HEZ -
subsidiaries as no English names have been registered.
1 72 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22



20

INVENTORIES 20

Finished goods BT

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
“cost of sales” amounted to approximately HK$294,322,000
(2021: approximately HK$235,633,000).

As at 31 March 2022, finished goods with cost of
approximately HK$31,643,000 (2021: approximately
HK$32,436,000) were considered as obsolete.

The movement in the provision for inventory obsolescence is
as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year FEEER

(Reversal of)/provision for inventory BEEE (BE) BE
obsolescence

Exchange difference EREE

Balance at end of the year FRER

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

2022 2021
—ECHF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT FTiERT
115,420 142,451

BREMIWFTATHEHERR] Z2FEREY
£294322,0008 T( = & = — F£: 4
235,633,000/ 7T) °

RIZEZZF=A=+—0 BRERGZK
R # 531,643,000 t(Z 2= —F: &

32,436,000 7T) °

BEFEREZBHNOT :

2022 2021
—Eg-= B —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FExT
32,436 26,916
(1,046) 5,236
253 284
31,643 32,436
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Z

21 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21 FEWERN  EWREXR HitEWK

CONTRACT ASSETS RREHNEE
Details of the trade, retention, other receivables and contract R-ZBZ-_F=ZF=+—HZEWKRERENR - BK
assets as at 31 March 2022 are listed below: REX - HttERREREHNEEFBOT ¢
2022 2021
—g- —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
Trade receivables FEUER SR 124,584 78,356
Less: provision for impairment of trade i : FEWBRFOR E & &
receivables (859) (720)
123,725 77,636
Retention receivables e IR BB 2 2,645 1,161
Less: provision for impairment of B BWRIR B RRER A
retention receivables (288) (285)
126,082 78,512
Contract assets BREE 4,344 4,364
Less: provision for impairment of W ANEERERE
contract assets (6) (39)
130,420 82,837
Other receivables, deposits and HEWR - e kBN
prepayments 28,570 20,471
158,990 103,308
Less: non-current portion B FEENEIED
Retention receivables FEWAR B3k 272) (150)
Deposits B (5,731) (5,724)
Current portion BREA &R 5 152,987 97,434
All non-current receivables are due within five years from the FrAE SRR 0 2 RSN B | E A ERE
end of the respective reporting dates. STEFREE -
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21 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21
CONTRACT ASSETS (coNT'D)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the reporting date
by invoice date is as follows:

1-90 days 1Z90K
91-365 days 91 E365K
Over 365 days BiB365X

The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30
to 90 days, while some customers are granted an extended
credit period of up to 120 days.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a life time
expected loss allowance for all trade and retention receivables
and contract assets. Information about the impairment of
these receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk is
set out in Note 3.1(c).

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

R - ERARER - HiEW
REREHEE @)

FEWBR AR E B 2 Rl (A HFTE) 2047
LU

2022 2021
—Eg-= B —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FExT
60,766 47,448
28,157 17,965
35,661 12,943
124,584 78,356

FEBMHEEFERNABOR/30E0X M
BABRFHNEEMITEERERZ 120K -

AEEREATBUMBERELENFE KB LT
EEREEEIE  HIEREBIRRREWRSE
MUREHNEEFAZBERESBRE - B
ZERWZEBERERAEBEERBRNERSH
RHEE3.1(c) °
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21 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21
CONTRACT ASSETS (conT'D)
The movement in the provision of expected credit loss on
trade, retention receivables and contract assets is as follows:
Balance at beginning of the year F A
Loss allowance for the year FREERE
Exchange difference ERER
Balance at end of the year FRER
As at 31 March 2022, the carrying values of trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values (2021: same).
Details of contract assets are as follows:
Contract assets related to contract work EEANIRNENEE

Contract assets consist of unbilled amount resulting from
contract work when revenue recognised exceeds the amount
billed to the customer.

Z

PR BRAR - BURE X - HibEUW

RRENEE )
YRR BRREBRRENEEZRBEE
EEBEEBWT
2022 2021
—g- —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,044 878
94 139
15 27
1,153 1,044
REZBZZHF=ZRB=+—-0 BERERERRAM
BRRzEAEEEARERE(ZE=—F
&) °
BREEFBOT ¢
2022 2021
—Eg- —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
4,383 4,364

BHEERRCRIARSZEBOT %
HERENESHERANIRELNRBIR

BEE-
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22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 RERBREEEY

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiERT
Cash at bank and on hand RITERRFERE 104,199 102,964
As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s cash and bank balances of R-ZZB-—F=A=+—H0 XEEZEEK
approximately HK$2,902,000 (2021: approximately RAIT4ER%2,902,0008 T(ZF=—F 1
HK$3,152,000) are deposited with banks in the PRC, where 3,152,000/ 7t) EF AHRE 2 RIT  ERZ I
the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control. ERBIES)
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was RIZBZZH=ZA=+—-B  BHRITERZ
0.20% (2021: 0.17%) per annum as at 31 March 2022. BERERZEE020%(ZE=—5F :0.17%) °

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 23 ENERAREMESRRENERS
LIABILITIES

2022 2021

—Eg-= B —F

HK$/000 HK$'000

FTRT FiET

Trade payables FEATBR X 19,999 25,115
Accrued charges and other payables FESHE B R B b RE X 14,387 10,860
Contract liabilities EHERE 75,337 42,248
Other provision H fth B 5,000 3,800
114,723 82,023

Less: non-current portion B FERNERER

Other provision H 35 (5,000) (3,800)
Current portion BNHAZE 109,723 78,223
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23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES (cONT'D)

The ageing analysis of the trade payables at the reporting date
by invoice date is as follows:

0-90 days 0E90K
91-365 days 91 Z365K
Over 365 days BB 365K

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying values of trade and other
payables approximate their fair values (2021: same).

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Contract liabilities for unsatisfied
performance obligations

RENEEENER

Contract liabilities consist of consideration received (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer for
unsatisfied performance obligations.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period in relation to
carried-forward contract liabilities:

Revenue recognised that was included
in the contract liabilities balance
at the beginning of the year

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt

Z

(&)

23 BENRRREMEMRRENEAE

A BRANERE B 2R (UBEEHFE) 247

LU
2022 2021
—g- —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FExT
13,513 19,612
4,346 2,744
2,140 2,759
19,999 25,115

RZB-ZZF=F=+—H0 EFERZAKRHM
ENZZEAEEEAAERE (ZE—F

H[E) e
EHEEFHRBNOT ¢
2022
—EgE-—
HK$’000
FHE T
75,337

2021
B
HK$’000
FET

42,248

BHEBERERARBHNETCREFRE (S

FHREEHE) o

TRETHEAFESHEEHBNAREHEE
A E S

2022 2021

St - = B

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

FFAFHEHNEBEABRNCSRRKRE

36,148

11,721
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24 BORROWINGS

Current
Secured
— Bank loans

Unsecured
— Trust receipt loans

24

i
B
— BATER

IR
— = RIEER

Trust receipt loans are mainly denominated in HK$ or EUR.

All bank loans are denominated in HKS$.

At 31 March 2022, the Group’s borrowings were repayable
based on contractual repayment terms as follows:

Within one year

In the second year

In the third to fifth year
Over fifth year

—FR

E-FR
E=ZFZERFA
BBERF

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$40,962,000 (2021:
approximately HK$44,834,000) are secured by leasehold
land and buildings of the Group of approximately
HK$160,600,000 (2021: approximately HK$166,233,000)

(Note 16).

The fair value of borrowings, which carry interest at floating

rates, equals their carrying amounts.

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

=B
2022 2021
—ECHF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT FTiERT
40,962 44,834
1,121 21,740
42,083 66,574

EERBERCEEERTERBUHEE
FBRITERZEEEERBT -

RIBZZFE=ZA=+—H ' XEEERES
HBRHREZEZMEROT :

2022 2021
—E-F B —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FExT
4,832 25,607
3,793 3,712
7,848 7,673
25,610 29,582
42,083 66,574

SRITHE 40,962,000 T(ZE=—F : 4
44,834,000 T ) R U A E B B E X
160,600,000 xt( = & = — F: #H
166,233,000787T) 2 A& + #h RAEFHER T (B
F16) °

MAEFBHNEZERZANBEREKREE -
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24

25

BORROWINGS (cONT'D)

The Group had the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

Floating rate: SEENRE
— Expiring within one year — —FREH

The effective interest rate is 2.6% per annum (2021: 3.6% per
annum) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing facilities for the year ended 31 March 2022 and
2021.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Not qualified for hedge THEHTETER
accounting
Foreign exchange forward SNEEMEXN - BHE
contract, at market value (FfF3E)
(Note)
Note:

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Sell HKD for EUR BHBLLEE

24 B @

REBBUATRBAZRESHE

2022
—E-_—F
HK$’000
FHERT

186,730

2021
—E-—5F
HK$’000
FET

174,037

BE_E-_—F=-A=1+—-RHLEEIERE
FZEE2.6%(ZFEZ—%F :3.6%) °

RBE-Z--_FR-ZF-—-F=ZA=+—H
LFE - AEECETHRESH MR -

25 fTEE€mI A

EEMANZERASSENT ¢

2022
—EB-CF
HK$’000
FHERT

43,745

2022 2021
—EBE-CF —E-—F
Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
&= =L &= affE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHExT FET FET
- (935) - (851)
BieE :
RIBZZER-FE--FE=ZA=1+—BEKRTE2ZH

2021
—E-—F
HK$’000
FERT

27,371
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26 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax liabilities

EEFFBHEE

EEFFEHEE

The movements in gross deferred income tax assets and
liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration

26 EEFTEH

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FExT
5,873 7,019
(18,900) (19,276)
(13,027) (12,257)

REZEERBRBAEEERIEHAEERA
REEZELEREHEEREEREZHN

the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are T
as follows:
Deferred income tax assets EEFRERERE
Decelerated tax
Tax losses depreciation Provision Total
HEER RERERE BB @t
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—B-C-f B ZE--Ff —E--Ff ZB--EF —B--F CZB--E “EB--§
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR iR TR TR TR iR TR TR
At 1 April RMA—A 4,211 4,167 8,834 7,189 805 536 13,850 11,892
(Charged)/credited to profit ~ (1B) /5t A&
or loss (1,708) 44 1,772 1,645 (187) 220 (123) 1,909
Exchange difference EREER - - - - 33 49 33 49
At 31 March R=B=+-H 2,503 4211 10,606 8,834 651 805 13,760 13,850
Deferred income tax liabilities B EREE
Revaluation of properties  Accelerated tax depreciation Total
MEER MEBETE @t
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E--fF C—E--§ CZB-Zf CZ—B--F CZB--f <—B--F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET THET TERT THT TERr
At 1 April WMEA—H 25,667 24,621 440 373 26,107 24,994
Charged to other N EE2ERE
comprehensive income 614 1,046 - - 614 1,046
Charged to profitor loss 1B 8% - - 66 67 66 67
At 31 March R=A=+—H 26,281 25,667 506 440 26,787 26,107

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R
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26 DEFERRED TAXATION (cONT'D)

27

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has not recognised deferred
income tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
approximately HK$24,713,000 (2021: approximately
HK$26,671,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities. These
tax losses utilisation will expire as follows:

In the first to fifth year inclusive

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$658,000
as at 31 March 2022 (2021: approximately HK$563,000)
have not been recognised for the withholding tax and other
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings totalled approximately
HK$13,166,000 at 31 March 2022 (2021: approximately
HK$11,273,000), and the Group does not intend to remit
these unremitted earnings from the relevant subsidiaries to the
Company in the foreseeable future.

26

F-FEFLFRN(BREEEMF)

Z

EEFTER (@)

R-ZB--F=A=+—H0  xEENERER
BEREFHERBEN24,713,0008T(=ZF
——F:426,671,000/87T) ZEEFMEBHRE
B WIEREEERE R AEERREEE
BBME  RERFATEEESERER A LUK
HIBEE - ZEHEFBZRHANT :

2022 2021

—EC-_F —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FET

24,713 26,671
MRIEBZZF=A=+—H UEIRHFBLT

KRERFE 2 FENHE R E Ath 5 18 v 2R 1L Fr
BHEEBEN658000BT(ZE=Z—F: &
563,00087T) - R—ZE-__F=A=+—H >
REBRNEHLNE13,1660008T(ZF=—
& #11,273,0008 ) RAEELE/ITER
A A REARATERENB AR ZRERF

SHARE CAPITAL 27 B&
2022 2021
ZEICE —E--F
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
= TiEn o= TR
Authorised: %
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each BREE0IBRIZEER
At 1 April and 31 March ROA-BR=A=1+-H 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EELES S
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each BREE0IBTZEER
At 1 April and 31 March ROA-BR=R=1+-A8 600,600,000 60,060 600,600,000 60,060
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28 RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
certain subsidiaries of the Company are required to
apportionate certain percentage of their profits after tax to the
respective statutory reserves. Subject to certain restrictions as
set out in the relevant PRC regulations, this statutory reserve
may be used to reduce any losses incurred or for
capitalisation as paid-up capital of the PRC subsidiary.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share
premium account of the group companies acquired pursuant
to the group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 22
March 2000, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represented contribution surplus made by
the then shareholders to certain subsidiaries of the Company
before the group reorganisation on 22 March 2000.

28

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

E3i]

EEE

BEHEABRARSAL  AARETHELR
ARNgBEZEERBHR SEARRERE
MzERETADL - REVEEERMNz2E
TRE  REERETHEBTEMBARESE
ZEABERAESSEREERL

SO

AEEZAGHRBRZER Y EEERER =
SETF-A-+-AEESEME(EE)Y
MEEREAAEEZROFEEZZH > I
EERERERRZAATDRTRG 2 A -

B

EXBBER-ZEREF=-A-+-REEE
HAERRRERDNTETHELAR ZHER

;/\ °
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29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@ Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Finance income
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment
properties
(Reversal of provision for)/provision
for inventory obsolescence
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Net impairment losses on financial
and contract assets
Loss/(gain) on forward contracts
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
COVID-19-related rent concessions

Operating profit before working
capital changes

Inventories

Trade, retention and other receivables

Contract assets

Trade and other payables and provision
Contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Z

29 HEREE

¥

@ RETHELEZRIRE

BR P 1S 8L AT S R
KTHEEAE
MHER
kT ON
REWELNERE (K@)

BRFE (BRERE) BE

HEMXE  BERREBEE

ERMRENEEZRE
ERFE

EHEXNEER (W)

¥ BERRETE

FREEENE
2019 BIRFESHAEBEESER

SEE BB EEEH

FE
FEWLBRR « FEUWAR BB 3K
R EAB R
BREE
AR R A MEAREERE

BRafE

REEECRE
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2022 2021
—EBCF —E-—5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
15,582 12,595
3,737 4,324
(161) (178)
2,000 (700)
(1,046) 5,236
292 3,847

94 139
2,154 (544)
16,763 16,269
30,651 37,541
(2/451) (6,028)
67,615 72,501
28,143 (2,433)
(55,081) 62,100
74 (570)
(908) 721
33,089 (35,072)
72,932 97,247




29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (conNT'D) 29 REREER @)

(b)

(o

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (b) HEWHE - BERRBZAETE
equipment
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds REEHRERERA  LWEWE  BE
from disposal of property, plant and equipment KRB 2SRRI
comprise:
2022 2021
—EZCHF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FiERT
Net book amount (Note 16) IREFE (M 16) 329 3,847
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BMERZRHEER
plant and equipment (Note 7) CEY (292) (3,847)

Proceeds from disposal of property,

HEME - BEMRBAEREA

plant and equipment 37 —
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial (0 mMEIBELENAGHE
activities

At 1 April 2020
Cash flows
Non-cash movement

At 31 March 2021
Cash flows
Non-cash movement

At 31 March 2022

Liabilities from financing activities

METH EE
Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
LB HERE wat

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET TiERT TiERT

R-E-—ZERmS—@ 10,656 77,546 88,202
BeRE 8,868 (31,498) (22,630)
FREHE 47,050 24,349 71,399
R-—B-——-F#=g=+-H 66,574 70,397 136,971
RenE (24,491) (31,258) (55,749)
FRSBH - 10,857 10,857

R-ZB-=—§=ZA=+—H 42,083 49,996 92,079
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30 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

31

Operating lease commitments — group company as lessor
As at 31 March 2021, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of investment properties as follows:

Within one year —5R

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2022, performance bonds of approximately
HK$32,511,000 (2021: approximately HK$37,595,000) have
been issued by the Group to customers as security of
contracts.

30

31

Z

REHERE

KEREARE —SEATESEAA
R-EBE-—F=A=1+—0  xEERETY
B2 REMELEREMR R RERRKERE
EREMABENT ¢

2021
B
HK$'000
FET

325
RAREE
RIBE-ZZF=ZRA=+—H ' AEECREF

BHBAREN32,511,0008T(ZBE=-—F :
#937,595,00078T0) IEBEHIER -
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during
the year, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties:

32

BEALRS

BRESUBREAKREZRS,ERI  RA
FER AREZEBEATETUTRS

(@ Related party relationship Nature of transaction 2022 2021
BEATBR REME -2 —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TRERT TR
A company under common Lease payments paid to Negotiator
control of certain directors Consultants Limited (“NCL”)
of the Company (Note) {45 Negotiator Consultants Limited
—ERARDEE TEBHEES (TNCL) 2 HE R
2 AE (W) 2,774 3,826
Note: Mt :

NCL is a company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Wai,
Albert, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, directors of
the Company, have beneficial interests. The lease payment was paid in
the normal course of business at terms mutually agreed between the
Group and NCL.

(b) Balances with related parties

NCLAARDEEEHHELE  WHELE - H
HELERGERCEREESEE 2NA A
BENRERFERBRETEAEEENCLERZ
E IR

(b) BEALZHELR

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Other receivables from RE LT 28 E A FEU R
— NCL — NCL 286 265

Balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The carrying amounts approximate their fair
values (2021: same).

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

EHREIER RERABERER -
BEEELAAERE (ZB=—F : 4
A) -
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33 AARMBMRARRAESE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
2022 2021
—E-_—F —E-—4F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt = FHET FTHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG e 90,918 90,918
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUN T B D B E0IE 29,166 33,999
Other receivables H AR 30 30
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRESZEY 972 1,196
_________ 30,168 35225
Total assets WEE 121,086 126,143
EQUITY %
Equity attributable to equity holders 7x 2 5] fr & & FE{L %
of the Company
Share capital &N 60,060 60,060
Reserves fiE (a) 58,840 64,101
Total equity DAL 118,900 124,161
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables HA TR 2,161 1,895
Current income tax liabilities KEFFEHER 25 87
___________ 2186 1982
Total equity and liabilities HEZRAE 121,086 126,143
The statement of financial position of the Company was RARBBRRAROKESEFN-_E=-F &
approved by the Board of Directors on 14 July 2022 and were BTHAH#tE  YHTIESKRES -
signed on its behalf.
TSE Sun Fat, Henry TSE Sun Po, Tony
i E i ¥ &
Director Director
EE EE
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D)

Note:

(@)

Reserve movement of the Company

At 1 April 2020
Profit for the year
Dividends (Note 14(a))

At 31 March 2021

At 1 April 2021
Profit for the year
Dividends (Note 14(a))

At 31 March 2022

BEE -

(@)

R-ZE-_ZTFMA—A
FE=F

&2 (M 14()
R-ZB-—%=A=+-—H
R-ZE_—FMA—H
FEEF

BRE (M 14G)

R=ZB-—f=A=+-—H

BHTERBRAA2021/22FF R

AARFERE

33 AARMBERRRRBESE @

Retained
earnings
RE T
HK$’000

TiERT
49,483

20,624
(6,006)

64,101

64,101
745
(6,006)

58,840
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Five-Year Financial Summary

Results
Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Shareholders” equity

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the five
years ended 31 March 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 have

ES
RAREE
FE1L &R

BEREE
RMEE
meE

been prepared on a consolidated basis.

LFUBRE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—EoCF B CZB-FF ZE-hE ZF-N\E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TExT FiERT FiERT FiET FiBT
11,894 10,769 11,326 15,085 44,194
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E--fF =—B--F Z2-BF Z2-hAF ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET TR FHBT FET T
702,224 702,678 678,621 620,317 656,011
(231,703) (241,446) (228,444) (157,441) (176,800)
470,521 461,232 450,177 462,876 479,211

AEBHEE-ZE-NE  ZF-hE ZFEZ2F.
CEC R E__F=A=+—HILRESEE
BREZEE BERBEBENRGEEERR -

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021/22






B =2

stock code & % 1 5 : 00599
www.ebon.com.hk



http://www.ebon.com.hk

	封面
	目錄
	財務摘要
	公司資料
	集團架構
	主席報告書
	管理層討論與分析
	董事報告
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務摘要
	內封底
	封底



